# MINUTES OF ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON TUESDAY, 9 MARCH 2004

Present: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross (Chairperson) (Wahroonga Ward)

Councillors L Bennett & T Hall (St Ives Ward)

Councillors I de Vulder & E Malicki (Comenarra Ward)

Councillors E Keays & A Little (Roseville Ward)

Councillor J Kitson (Gordon Ward)

Staff Present: General Manager (Brian Bell)

Director Environment & Regulatory Services (Michael Miocic)

Director Planning & Environment (Leta Webb) Director Technical Services (Greg Piconi) Director Open Space (Steven Head)

Director Community Services (Janice Bevan) Director Finance & Business (John McKee)

Acting Team Leader, Roseville Ward (Corrie Swanepoel)

Team Leader, St Ives Ward (Graham Bolton) Development Control Officer (Rachel Josey) Team Leader, Comenarra Ward (Tony Bailey) Senior Governance Officer (Geoff O'Rourke) Office Co-ordinator/WP (Casey Locke)

The Meeting commenced at 7.01pm

The Mayor offered the Prayer

#### 117 APOLOGIES

File: S02194

Councillors T Roach (family commitment) and B Coleman (illness) tendered apologies for non-attendance and requested leave of absence.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors de Vulder/Kitson)

That the apologies by Councillors T Roach and B Coleman for non-attendance be accepted and leave of absence be granted.

**CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY** 

#### **DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST**

The Mayor adverted to the necessity for Councillors and staff to declare a Pecuniary Interest in any item on the Business Paper.

No such interest was declared.

# 118 CONFIRMATION OF REPORTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN CLOSED MEETING

File: S02499

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Malicki/Bennett)

That in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of the Local Government Act 1993, all officers' reports be released to the press and public, with the exception of:

## C.1 48 St Johns Avenue, Gordon – Drainage

(Section 10A(2)(g) - Advice concerning litigation)

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

de Vulder, Keays, Kitson, Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillor Hall

#### ADDRESS THE COUNCIL

The following member of the public addressed Council on an item not on the Agenda:

J Posen

#### **DOCUMENTS CIRCULATED TO COUNCILLORS**

The Mayor adverted to the documents circulated in the Councillors' papers and advised that the following matters would be dealt with at the appropriate time during the meeting:

#### **General Business**

Refers GB.7: Evaluation and Acceptance of Tender for New Waste and

Recycling Collection Contract – Memorandum from Director

Technical Services dated 9 March 2004

Refers GB.9: West Pymble Pool Business Strategy – Memorandum from

Director Open Space dated 9 March 2004

Refers GB.12: 127 Bannockburn Road, Turramurra – Memorandum from General

Manager dated 9 March 2004

Petition: Pedestrian Crossing Safety – Lindfield East Public School (One

Hundred & Fifty-Two [152] Signatures)

#### **Confidential Business**

Refers GB.9: West Pymble Pool Business Strategy – Memorandum from

Director Open Space dated 8 March 2004

#### **CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES**

#### 119 Minutes of Ordinary Meeting of Council

File: S02131

Meeting held 2 March 2004 Minutes numbered 94 to 116

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Malicki/Hall)

That Minutes numbered 94 to 116 circulated to Councillors were taken as read and confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings of the Meeting, with the exception of Minute No 99.

#### **CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY**

## 120 Minutes of Inspections Committee

File: S02131 Vide Minute No 99

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Bennett/Kitson)

That confirmation of the accuracy of Minute No 99 be deferred to allow the tape to be checked.

#### CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

#### **PETITIONS**

# Diana Avenue, West Pymble - Installation Of Kerb And Guttering (Thirty-Two [32] Signatures)

File: 88/05369/01

"We the undersigned support the request to Ku-ring-gai Council made by Mrs Bronwyn Wilson – Principal of West Pymble Public School in relation to kerbing, guttering and footpathing the Diana Avenue entrance to the school in the interests of increased safety for the students of West Pymble Public School and for the wider community."

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Malicki/de Vulder)

That the Petition be received and referred to Director Technical Services for attention.

#### **CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY**

## Pedestrian Crossing Safety - Lindfield East Public School (One Hundred & Fifty-Two [152] Signatures)

File: 88/06150/03

"We, the undersigned, ask the Council and RTA to improve the safety of the pedestrian crossings outside Lindfield East Public School.

Currently there is only an RTA safety officer at the crossing directly outside the school on Tryon Road, however, children also use the crossings at Melbourne and Wellington Roads, both of which have very poor visibility with constant use before and after school.

Additionally, many parents park at the East Lindfield Shopping Village car park which does not have safe access from the school. Parents and children would need to cross Crana Ave which does not have a crossing and is used by the Government and Shorelink buses, or cross further down Wellington Road, where visibility is better, but does not have a pedestrian crossing.

We request that:

- 1. Visibility is improved at both Wellington and Melbourne Roads pedestrian \ crossings.
- 2. Installation of a new crossing to access East Lindfield Shopping Village.
- 3. Installation of traffic lights on Tryon Road, operational during school hours only."

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Keays/Little)

That the Petition be received and referred to the appropriate officer of Council for attention.

#### **CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY**

#### **GENERAL BUSINESS**

23 To 25 Stanley Street, St Ives - Demolition Of Existing Structures And Erection
 Of SEPP 5 Development Consisting Of 5 X 3 Bedroom And 2 X 2 Bedroom Units
 And Basement Carparking

File: DA638/03

Ward: St Ives

Applicant: William Heaton C/- Glendinning Minto & Associates

Owner: L A Marks-Meenan and J Kendall

Determination of Development Application 638/03 for the demolition of existing dwellings and other structures and erection of a SEPP 5 development consisting of 5 x 3 bedroom and 2 x 2 bedroom units and basement carparking

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Hall/Bennett)

- A. That consideration of Development Application No 638/03 for the demolition of existing structures and construction of a SEPP 5 development consisting of seven (7) units and basement car parking for Lot A and 1 in DP's 320628 and 213105, at 23 to 25 Stanley Street, St Ives be deferred pending a site inspection.
- B. That the applicant be requested to have the location of the proposed development pegged out on site for the inspection.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

Hall, Keays, Kitson, Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillor de Vulder

# 124 14 Arthur Street, Killara - Demolish Existing Dwelling And Construct Detached Dual Occupancy

File: DA937/03

Ward: Gordon

Applicant: Venture First P/L c/- Glendinning Minto & Associates

Owner: Venture First Pty Ltd

To carry out a review under Section 82A of an application for demolition of an existing dwelling and swimming pool and construction of a detached dual occupancy that was refused by Council on 25 November 2003.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Kitson/Keays)

- A. That consideration of Development Application No 937/03 for demolition of an existing dwelling and swimming pool and construction of a detached dual occupancy at 14 Arthur Street, Killara be deferred pending a site inspection.
- B. That the applicant be requested to have the location of the proposed development pegged out on site for the inspection.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

Hall, Keays, Kitson, Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillor de Vulder

## West Pymble Pool Business Strategy

File: S02381

The purpose of this report is to advise Council of feedback received during the period of public exhibition of the draft West Pymble Pool Business Strategy, associated funding implications and to endorse the business strategy for future actions.

Additionally the existing pool management lease expires in September 2004 and as per the previous resolution Council requires that a tender process be undertaken to market test the lease incorporating items outlined in the business strategy.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Malicki/Hall)

That consideration of the West Pymble Pool Business Strategy be deferred pending a site inspection.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Hall,

Keays, Kitson and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillors Bennett, de Vulder and Little

# 52A Kulgoa Road, Pymble - Detached Dual Occupancy

File: DA1164/03

Ward: Gordon

Applicant: H C Prott c/- Glendinning Minto and Associates

Owner: H and D Prott

To determine a development application for a dual occupancy development.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Kitson/Keays)

That Development Application No 1164/03 for the construction of a two storey dwelling to create a detached dual occupancy development on Lot 2, DP 508831, being 52A Kulgoa Road, Pymble, be approved subject to the following conditions:

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

- 1. The development to be in accordance with Development Application No 1164/03 and Development Application plans prepared by Wibsoma Pty Ltd, reference number DW.001 to DW.004 and DA-005 to DA-007, dated 24 July 2003 and 9 February 2004 and lodged with Council on 12 September 2003 and 16 February 2004.
- 2. All building works shall comply with the Building Code of Australia.
- 3. The submission of the approved plans to Sydney Water, before any work is commenced to ensure that the proposed structure meets that Authority's By-Laws. Failure to submit these plans before commencing work will render the owner liable to a penalty and may result in the demolition of work.
- 4. The works set forth in the plans and specifications and approved under this consent, once commenced, shall be completed within two (2) years from the date of commencement.
- 5. The approved building shall not be occupied unless the development has been completed in accordance with all conditions of consent and the approved plans and a Occupation Certificate has been issued.
- 6. For the purpose of ensuring the compliance with the terms of the approval, an approved copy of the plan and this Consent and Construction Certificate shall be kept on site at all times.

- 7. For the purpose of safety and amenity of the area, no building materials, plant or the like are to be stored on the road or footpath without the written approval being obtained from the Council beforehand. The pathway shall be kept in a clean, tidy and safe condition during building operations. Council reserves the right, without notice, to rectify any such breach and to charge the cost against the applicant/owner/builder, as the case may be.
- 8. HOURS OF WORK: For the purpose of residential amenity, noise generating work carried out in connection with building and construction operation, including deliveries of building materials and equipment, is restricted to the following hours: Mondays to Fridays inclusive: 7.00am to 5.30pm. Saturdays: 8.00am to 12.00 noon. Sundays and Public Holidays: Not Permitted. The use of the following items of plant on the site is also restricted to the abovementioned hours: compressors, bulldozers, power operated woodworking machines, excavators and loaders, jackhammers, Ramset guns, concrete mixers and concrete delivery wagons, hoists, winches, welding and riveting plant.

Whilst work on Saturdays may be performed until 5.30pm, such work or any associated activities shall not involve the use of any noise generating processes or equipment.

- 9. For the purpose of public safety, a sign shall be erected on the site prior to any work commencing which is clearly visible from a public place stating that unauthorised entry to the site is not permitted and showing the name of the builder or another person responsible for the site and a telephone number for contact outside working hours. The sign may only be removed on satisfactory completion of the works.
- 10. A sign shall be erected in a prominent position on the site which states the name and contact details of the Principal Certifying Authority.
- 11. If an excavation associated with the erection or demolition of a building extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, the person causing the excavation to be made:
  - a. must preserve and protect the building from damage, and
  - b. if necessary, must underpin and support the building in an approved manner, and
  - c. must, at least 7 days before excavating below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, give notice of intention to do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and furnish particulars of the excavation to the owner of the building being erected or demolished.

The owner of the adjoining allotment of land is not liable for any part of the cost of work carried out for the purposes of this clause, whether carried out on the allotment of land being excavated or on the adjoining allotment of land.

- In this clause, allotment of land includes a public road and any other public place.
- 12. Toilet facilities are to be provided, within the work site on which work involved in the erection or demolition of a building is being carried out, at the rate of one toilet for every 20 persons or part of 20 persons employed at the site.
- 13. The demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the guidelines contained in Australian Standard 2601-1991: The Demolition of Structures.
- 14. Access to demolition sites shall be protected as directed by the Principal Certifying Authority by the use of suitable fences or hoardings.
- 15. A person taking down or demolishing or causing to be taken down or demolished any building or part thereof shall, upon identifying or suspecting that asbestos is present in the building, immediately notify the Workcover Authority. The Authority is the controlling body for the safe removal, handling and disposal of asbestos. The Authority supervises and monitors contractors engaged in asbestos removal.
  - The requirements and standards imposed by the Authority, its consultants or contractors shall be complied with.
- 16. Erosion control measures shall be provided on demolition sites to prevent the siltation of watercourses and drainage systems.
- 17. Existing stormwater lines on the site are to be blocked and made inoperable after buildings are demolished so as to prevent the conveyance of silt or sediments into the gutter or street drainage system.
- 18. The patio to Dwelling 2 is to be constructed of timber to allow for stormwater infiltration beneath and to eliminate the need for fill against the external wall of the dwelling.
- 19. Stormwater runoff from all hard surfaces, or landscaped areas which are not at natural ground level, shall be piped to the watercourse within the drainage reserve adjacent to the site. A headwall and energy dissipater structure shall be constructed at the discharge point. Unless specified by plans approved with the Development Consent or other Conditions of this Consent, this structure is to be solidly constructed from mortared sandstone bushrock so that it has a low impact on local landscape and vegetation. It must not impede flows along the watercourse nor or lead to ongoing erosion of the watercourse.
- 20. To maintain capacity of the Public drainage system, an On-site Stormwater Detention System must be provided in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual. Unless otherwise approved, separate detention systems are to be provided for each residence. An overflow is to be incorporated that will direct any excess flow to the downstream drainage system and subsoil drainage is to be provided from the underside of the sediment control sump to the outlet line or other approved location.

The system is to be cleaned regularly and maintained to the satisfaction of Council.

- NOTE 1: The on-site stormwater detention system and property drainage system is not to require excavation or fill underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
- NOTE 2: If the applicant wishes to vary the prescribed storage and outflow volumes contained in Council's Stormwater Management Manual, a detailed analysis must be provided following the guidelines set out in Council's requirements for on-site detention with full computations accompanying the submission including a flood routing analysis.
- NOTE 3: All roof, driveway and other hard-surface runoff water is to be intercepted and directed to the on-site stormwater detention system. If some areas of hard-surface are unable to be directed to the detention system an adjustment to the rate of discharge is to be made to attain the required site discharge.
- NOTE 4: If a landscaped surface type detention system is used the storage volume required is to be increased by 20%.
- NOTE 5: The standard Council On-site Stormwater Detention Calculation Sheet is to be completed and included on design drawings. This is available from Council upon request.
- 21. For stormwater control a 200mm wide grated channel/trench drain with heavy duty removable galvanised grates is to be provided in front of the garage door for the new residence and connected to the stormwater drainage system.
- 22. The provision of temporary sediment and erosion control facilities and measures are to be installed, prior to the commencement of any works on the site to minimise and/or eliminate unnecessary erosion and loss of sediment. These facilities must be maintained in working order during construction works and up to the completion of the maintenance period. All sediment traps must be cleared on a regular basis and after each major storm, and/or as directed by the Principal Certifying Authority, with all silt being removed from the site, or to an approved location within the site.
- 23. Driveways and access ramps must be designed not to scrape the underside of cars. In all respects, the proposed vehicle access and accommodation arrangements must be designed and constructed to comply with Australian Standard AS 2890.1 "Off-Street car parking".
- 24. A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained. Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing

Coordinator. Please refer to "Your Business" section of Sydney Water's web site at <a href="www.sydneywater.com.au">www.sydneywater.com.au</a> then the "e-developer" icon or telephone 13 20 92. Following application a "Notice of Requirements" will detail water and sewer extensions to be built and charges to be paid. Please make early contact with the Coordinator, since building of water/sewer extensions can be time consuming and may impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.

25. A Tree Preservation Order exists within the Ku-ring-gai Council area whereby the removal, lopping or destruction of any tree exceeding 5.0 metres in height or 4.0 metres in canopy spread (except where exempt as defined under Council's Tree Preservation Order) without prior written consent of Council is prohibited.

Release of the Construction Certificate gives automatic approval to the removal ONLY of those trees located on the subject property within the footprint of a proposed new building/structure or within 3.0 metres of a proposed new dwelling. Where this application is for a building/structure other than a dwelling then ONLY trees within the area to be occupied by this building/structure may be removed. Other trees SHALL NOT be REMOVED or DAMAGED without an application being made under Council's Tree Preservation Order.

- 26. The applicant shall ensure that at all times during the construction period no activities, storage or disposal of materials shall take place beneath the canopy of any tree protected under Council's Tree Preservation Order.
- 27. Compliance with the general terms of approval issued by Department of Infrastructure, Planning and Natural Resources.

# CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

28. The Long Service Levy is to be paid to Council in accordance with the provisions of Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Payments Act 1986 prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

Note: Required if cost of works exceed \$25,000.00.

29. It is a condition of consent that the applicant, builder or developer or person who does the work on this residential building project arrange the Builders Indemnity Insurance and submit the Certificate of Insurance in accordance with the requirements of Part 6 of the *Home Building Act 1989* to the Council or other Principal Certifying Authority for endorsement of the plans accompanying the Construction Certificate. It is the responsibility of the applicant, builder or developer to arrange the Builder's Indemnity Insurance for residential building work over the value of \$12,000 and to satisfy the Council or other Principal Certifying Authority by the presentation of the necessary Certificate of Insurance so as to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 6 of the *Home Building Act 1989*. The requirements for the Builder's Indemnity Insurance does not apply to commercial or industrial building work or for residential work less than \$12,000, nor to work undertaken by persons holding

- an Owner/Builder's Permit issued by the Department of Fair Trading (unless the owner/builder's property is sold within 7 years of the commencement of the work).
- The Infrastructure Restorations Fee calculated in accordance with the Council's 30. adopted schedule of Fees and Charges is to be paid to the Council prior to any earthworks or construction commencing. The applicant or builder/developer will be held responsible for and liable for the cost any damage caused to any Council property or for the removal of any waste bin, building materials, sediment, silt, or any other article as a consequence of doing or not doing anything to which this consent relates. "Council Property" includes footway, footpath paving, kerbing, guttering, crossings, street furniture, seats, litter bins. trees, shrubs, lawns mounds, bushland, and similar structures or features on road reserves or any adjacent public place. Council will undertake minor restoration work as a consequence of the work at this site in consideration of the "Infrastructure Restorations Fee" lodged with the Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. This undertaking by the Council does not absolve the applicant or Builder/developer of responsibility for ensuring that work or activity at this site does not jeopardise the safety or public using adjacent public areas or of making good or maintaining "Council property" (as defined) during the course of this project.
- 31. Prior to commencing any construction or subdivision work, the following provisions of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act, 1979 (the 'Act') are to be complied with:
  - a. A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section 81A(2)(a) of the Act.
  - b. A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act.
  - c. Council is to be notified in writing, at least two (2) days prior to the intention of commencing buildings works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act.
  - d. Should the development be certified by a Principal Certifying Authority other than Council, a fee for each Part 4A Certificate is to be paid to Council on lodgement of those Certificates with Council.
- 32. A contribution is to be paid for the provision, extension or augmentation of community facilities, recreation facilities, open space and administration that will, or are likely to be, required as a consequence of development in the area.
  - TOTAL CONTRIBUTION FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL DWELLING IS CURRENTLY \$12,459.72. The amount of the payment shall be in accordance with the Section 94 charges as at the date of payment. The charges may vary at the time of payment in accordance with Council's Section 94 Contributions Plan to reflect changes in land values, construction costs and the consumer price index.

This contribution shall be paid to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and the amount payable shall be in accordance with the Council's adopted Section 94 Contributions Plan for Residential Development, effective from 20 December 2000, calculated for additional person as follows:

1.	Preparation of New Residents Kit	\$10.98
2.	New Resident Survey	\$9.87
3.	New child care centre	
	(including land acquisition and construction of facility)	\$252.13
4.	Additions/alterations to Acron Rd child care centre	
	for additional 20 places	\$2.41
5.	New Library bookstock	\$17.95
6.	New Public Art	\$2.93
7.	Acquisition of Open Space - Pymble	\$1,966.00
8.	Koola Park upgrade and reconfiguration	\$143.09
9.	North Turramurra Sportsfield development	\$986.80
10.	Section 94 2000-2003 Study and Interim Plan preparation cos	t \$49.34
11.	Section 94 Officer for period of Plan 2000-2003	\$118.42

To obtain the total contribution figure the following table of occupancy rates is to be used:

#### OCCUPANCY RATES FOR DIFFERENT DWELLING SIZES

Small dwelling (under 75 sqm)	1.25 persons
Medium dwelling (75 - under 110 sqm)	1.75 persons
Large dwelling (110 - under 150sqm)	2.75 persons
Very Large dwelling (150sqm or more)	3.5 persons
New Lot	3.5 persons

- 33. Full design drawings of the proposed method of achieving the requirements for on-site stormwater detention and all supporting calculations are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer in accordance with Council requirements. These must be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 34. The property drainage system (including but not limited to gutters, downpipes, pits, joints, flushing facilities and all ancillary plumbing) shall be designed and based upon a 235mm/hour rainfall intensity for a duration of five (5) minutes (1:50 year storm recurrence) for impervious surfaces. Design drawings and calculations are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual and the national Plumbing and Drainage Code. These must be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
  - NOTE 1: The property drainage system is not to require excavation or fill underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as

- approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
- NOTE 2: If the proposed drainage system involves piping underneath or within the building then the designer is to certify that the design is in accordance with AS3500.3.2:1998 and the BCA.
- NOTE 3: All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, are to be safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.
- 35. For stormwater control, the provision of an interceptor drainage system to capture and convey all stormwater runoff arriving at the subject property from upslope areas to the Council or public drainage system and bypassing any onsite stormwater detention systems. The drainage system is to comprise suitable inlet pits, grated drains, pipes and channels and is to be designed in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual. This drainage system is to be designed for storm events up to and including the 100-year ARI. Design drawings are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer and submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 36. For stormwater retention and quality control, provision of a five (5) metre long first-flush absorption trench within the subject property designed to capture and retain the first-flush stormwater runoff from the subject property after which runoff bypasses the trench and reverts to the main drainage system. Design drawings are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer and submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
  - NOTE 1: The first-flush system may be achieved by the use of a separate low-level outlet from a pit located on the main drainage system.
  - NOTE 2: Where practicable, runoff from driveway and landscaped areas is to be directed to the retention system in preference to roof runoff.
  - NOTE 3: The trench shall be 700mm wide x 700mm deep and fitted with half round PVC (230mm radius) dome sections backfilled with crushed or round river gravel to within 150mm of surface level, surrounded with suitable geofabric and finished with topsoil.
  - NOTE 4: The trench is to be at least 5 metres from private property boundaries and 3 metres from the footings of any structure.
  - NOTE 5: A suitably designed litter and coarse sediment 450mm square grated arrestor pit is to be provided immediately upstream of the trench.
  - NOTE 6: The trench is not to require excavation underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified

- arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
- NOTE 7: Upon completion, certification from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority with respect to this condition being satisfied.
- NOTE 8: This requirement does not apply where the Applicant considers installation to be impractical.

#### OR

For stormwater retention, provision of a 2000 litre rainwater tank within the subject property designed to capture and retain runoff from at least one roof downpipe after which runoff bypasses the tank and reverts to the main drainage system. Design drawings are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer and submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.

- NOTE 1: The tank is to be located at or above existing natural ground level.
- NOTE 2: If abutting a wall of the dwelling, the tank must be below the eaves line.
- NOTE 3: The tank must not be located on the front façade of a dwelling.
- NOTE 4: If the tank is to be attached to a structure then a structural engineer is to certify the adequacy of the design of the structure to carry the tank.
- NOTE 5: Maximum height of the tank is 1.8 metres above natural ground level where installed along the side boundary setback of a dwelling.
- NOTE 6: The tank is to be a commercially manufactured tank designed for the use of water supply and to be installed in accordance with manufacturers specifications.
- NOTE 7: The tank is to be located above an available landscaped area so that the tank may be readily used for watering purposes.
- NOTE 8: The tank is to be fitted with a standard garden tap or similar which is to be clearly marked as not to be used for drinking purposes.
- NOTE 9: The tank is to be fitted with measures to prevent mosquito breeding.
- NOTE 10: Upon completion, certification from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority with respect to this condition being satisfied

- NOTE 11: This requirement does not apply where the Applicant considers installation to be impractical.
- 37. To prevent surface stormwater from entering the building, the finished habitable ground floor level(s) of the building shall be a minimum of 150mm above adjacent finished ground level(s). The entire outside perimeter of the building must have overland flow escape routes which will protect all finished floor levels from flooding during times of complete subsurface drainage blockage.
- 38. A passing bay is to be provided within the access handle, which complies with AS2890.1 1993. Details are to be provided and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority prior to issue of a Construction Certificate.
- 39. An amended plan and specification of the proposed landscape works for the site shall be prepared in accordance with Council's Development Control Plan No 38, by a Landscape Designer to enhance the amenity of the built environment and protect the Ku-ring-gai landscape character. The plan must be submitted to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and be approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer prior to the commencement of works. A Landscape Assessment fee of \$120.00 will be payable on lodgement of the required landscape plan, in accordance with the following schedule.

Landscape Plan Certification Fees

Minor Landscaping Works	\$50.00
New Dwellings/Dual Occupancies	\$120.00

Multi-Unit Housing \$100.00 plus \$30.00 per unit Commercial \$100.00 plus 10 cents per m<sup>2</sup>

- 40. The amended Landscape plan shall indicate the proposed passing bay. The amended landscape plan shall provide details of effective screening along the northern and southern sides of the passing bay.
- 41. The property shall support a minimum number of 10 trees that will attain 13.0 metres in height on the site, to preserve the tree canopy of Ku-ring-gai, in accordance with Council's policy of Tree Retention/Replenishment on Residential Allotments adopted 26 April 1988. The existing tree/s, and additional tree/s to be planted, shall be shown on the Landscape Plan/Site Plan. The plan shall be submitted to Council prior to release of Construction Certificate and approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer, prior to commence of work.
- 42. The 9 trees to be planted shall be maintained in a healthy and vigorous condition until they attain a height of 5.0 metres whereby they will be protected by Council's Tree Preservation Order. Any of the trees found faulty, damaged, dying or dead shall be replaced with the same species.
- 43. A CASH BOND/BANK GUARANTEE of \$2,000.00 shall be lodged with Council as a Landscape Establishment Bond prior to the release of the Construction Certificate to ensure that the landscape works are installed and

maintained in accordance with the approved landscape plan or other landscape conditions.

Fifty percent (50%) of the this bond will be refunded upon issue of the final Certificate of Compliance, where landscape works as approved have been satisfactorily installed. The balance of the bond will be refunded 3 years after issue of the building certificate, where landscape works has been satisfactorily established and maintained.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to notify Council in relation to the refunding of the bond at the end of the 3 year period. Where a change of ownership occurs during this period it is the responsibility of the applicant to make all arrangements regarding transference of the bond and to notify Council of such.

44. The applicant shall ensure that no underground services (ie water, sewerage, drainage and gas) shall be laid beneath the canopy of any tree protected under Council's Tree Preservation Order, located on the subject allotment and adjoining allotments.

A plan detailing the routes of these services shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to the release of the Construction Certificate.

45. A waste management plan shall be prepared in accordance with Development Control Plan No 40 and submitted to Council for approval prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

#### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING

- 46. Prior to the commencement of any work, the Principal Certifying Authority shall be notified in writing of the name and contractor licence number of the owner/builder who intends to carry out the approved works.
- 47. To preserve and enhance the natural environment, the downslope side of the proposed construction area of the site is to be enclosed with a suitable erosion control barrier (e.g. straw bales or geofabric fence) along contour before any other work on the site commences.
- 48. To preserve the following tree/s, no work shall commence until the area beneath the canopy of the following tree/s is fenced off at the specified radius from the trunk to prevent any activities, storage or the disposal of materials within the fenced area. The fence/s shall be maintained intact until the completion of all demolition/building work on site.

Tree/Location

Radius in Metres

Jacaranda mimosifolia (Jacaranda) 2 metres Eastern boundary adjacent to the driveway access handle

- 49. The tree protection fence shall be constructed of galvanised pipe at 2.4 metre spacings and connected by securely attached chain mesh fencing to a minimum height of 1.8 metres prior to work commencing.
- 50. Upon completion of the installation of the required tree protection measures you are required to contact Council on telephone 9424 0888 or facsimile 9418 1117 to arrange an inspection of the site, in this regard a minimum of 24 hours notice is required. Following the carrying out of a satisfactory inspection and subject to the payment of all relevant monies and compliance with any other conditions of approval, work may commence.

#### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 51. Prior to the release of any occupation certificate, a compliance certificate must be obtained from an accredited certifier, certifying that the building works for the building to be occupied comply with the plans and specifications approved by this development consent; and any construction certificate associated with this consent for the buildings to be occupied. If the PCA is not the Council, then this compliance certificate must be submitted to the Council at the same time as the occupation certificate is submitted to the Council in accordance with Clause 151(2) of the E P & A Act regulations.
- 52. The creation of a Positive Covenant and Restriction on the Use of Land under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the on-site stormwater detention facilities on the property. These must be created prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate or issue of a Subdivision Certificate. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's "draft terms of Section 88B instrument for protection of on-site detention facilities" (available from Council on request) and to the satisfaction of Council.

For existing Titles, the Positive Covenant and the Restriction on the use of Land is to be created through an application to the Land Titles Office in the form of a request using forms 13PC and 13RPA. The relative location of the On-Site Detention facility, in relation to the building footprint, must be shown on a scale sketch, attached as an annexure to the request forms.

- 53. In order to maintain Council's database of as-constructed on-site stormwater detention systems, if the Principal Certifying Authority is not Council then a copy of the approved stormwater detention design, the works-as-executed drawings and the Engineer's certification of the as-constructed system is to be provided to Council, attention Development Engineer, prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate or issue of a Subdivision Certificate.
- 54. Prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate or issue of a Subdivision Certificate, any infrastructure within the road reserve along the frontage of the subject site or within close proximity which has been damaged as a result of construction works on the subject site must be fully repaired to the satisfaction of Council's Development Engineer and at no cost to Council.

- 55. The Section 73 Sydney Water compliance certificate must be obtained and submitted prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate or issue of the Subdivision Certificate.
- 56. Construction of the On-site Stormwater Detention System is to be supervised and upon completion a Certificate and Works-as-Executed (WAE) plan is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval, prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate. Certification is to be provided by a suitably qualified civil/hydraulic engineer and the WAE plan is to be prepared by a registered surveyor. The certifying engineer must to also complete and submit Council's standard On-site Stormwater Detention Certification sheet.

The Certificate is to be with respect to compliance with:

- Compatibility of the drainage system with the approved plans
- The soundness of the structure.
- The adequacy of the outlet control mechanism to achieve the discharge as specified.
- The capacity of the detention storage as specified.
- The size of the orifice or pipe control fitted.
- The maximum depth of storage over the outlet control.
- The adequate provision of a debris screen.
- The inclusion of weepholes in the base of the outlet control pit.
- The provision of an emergency overflow path.
- All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, being safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.

The Works-as-Executed drawing(s) are to include all relevant levels including:

- invert levels
- surface or pavement levels
- floor levels including adjacent property floor levels
- maximum water surface level to be achieved in the storage zone
- dimensions of basin(s), tank(s), pit(s), etc.
- location(s) of basin(s), tank(s) and distances from buildings, boundaries, and easements, etc.
- storage volume(s) provided and supporting calculations
- size of orifice(s)
- 57. Construction of the property stormwater drainage works is to be supervised and upon completion certified by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer, prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate, that:
  - a. The works were carried out and completed in accordance with the approved plans.
  - b. All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, are safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.

A Works-as-Executed drawing of the property stormwater drainage system is also to be furnished by the Certifier Prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate.

- 58. The landscape works shall be completed prior to release of the Certificate of Occupation and maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.
- 59. The following noxious and/or undesirable plant species shall be removed from the property prior to completion of the proposed building works. Documentary evidence of compliance with this condition shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the release of the Occupation Certificate.

Ligustrum lucidum (Large-leaved Privet) Ligustrum sinense (Small-leaved Privet) Ipomoea sp. (Morning Glory Vine) Toxicodendron succedaneum (Rhus Tree)

#### **BUILDING CONDITIONS**

- 60. The following are required details and must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority *prior to issue of the Construction Certificate*. Any matter listed below must have a Certificate attached from a suitably qualified person to the effect that the design or matter complies with the relevant design Standard or Code which the Certificate must identify.
  - a. Details prepared by a practicing structural engineer for all or any reinforced concrete, structural steel or timber framing.
  - b. Wind bracing details complying with AS 1684-1992 National Timber Framing Code, AS 1170.2-1989 Wind Load Code or AS 4055-1992 Wind Loads for Housing Code.
  - c. Upper floor joist details, engineered or complying with AS 1684-1992 National Timber Framing Code.
  - d. Stormwater disposal details complying with Council's Stormwater Management Manual and/or other conditions of this consent.
- 61. The building works are to be inspected during construction by the Council, an accredited certifier or other suitably qualified person/s (as applicable) and a Compliance Certificate shall be issued prior to proceeding to the subsequent stages of construction, encompassing not less than the following stages:
  - a. All sediment and erosion control and tree protection measures and installations in place on the site prior to the commencement of any earthworks, excavations or other work.
  - b. Any pier holes and/or foundation material.
  - c. Any steel reinforcement prior to placement of concrete. This includes all reinforcement of floors, slabs, trenches, columns, beams and stairs (if components of this structure).
  - d. Any structural components (i.e. timber framework, structural steelwork or the like) before fixing any lining or covering.

- e. Any stormwater drainage works prior to covering.
- f. The completed landscape works in accordance with the approved plans.
- g. The completed structure prior to occupation.

The required inspection fees (which also covers the issue of the Compliance Certificate) are to be paid to the Council before the issue of a Construction Certificate for this development.

If inspections are to be carried out by Council, 24 hours notice is required by Council's Department of Environmental and Regulatory Services, by telephoning Customer Service on 9424 0888 during business hours (8.30am to 4.30pm) or by facsimile on 9418 1117.

Note: Inspections of work which is found to be defective or not ready will attract a reinspection fee. Please cancel bookings which will not be ready for inspection.

- 62. All structural timber members subject to weather exposure shall have a durability class rating of 2 or better in accordance with Australian Standard 1684.2-1999 (National Timber Framing Code), or be preservative treated in accordance with Australian Standard 1604-1980 (Preservative Treatment for Sawn Timbers, Veneers and Plywood).
- 63. For the purpose of safety and convenience a balustrade of 1.0 metre minimum height shall be provided to any landing, verandah, balcony or stairway of a height exceeding 1.0 metre above finished ground level. The design may consist of vertical or horizontal bars but shall not have any opening exceeding 125mm. For floors more than 4.0 metres above the ground, any horizontal elements within the balustrade or other barrier between 150mm and 760mm above the floor must not facilitate climbing.
- 64. For the purpose of safe ingress and egress the stairs are to be constructed within the following dimensions:

Risers: Maximum 190mm Minimum 115mm Going (Treads): Maximum 355mm Minimum 240mm

Note: Dimensions must also comply with limitations of two (2) Risers and one (1) going equalling a maximum 700mm or minimum 550mm. The Risers and Goings shall be uniform throughout the length of the stairway.

- 65. For fire safety an automatic fire detection and alarm system shall be installed throughout the dwelling in accordance with the following requirements:
  - a. A smoke alarm system complying with Part 3.7.2 of the Building Code of Australia Housing Provisions; or
  - b. Smoke alarms which:
    - i. comply with Australian Standard 3786 or listed in the Scientific Services Laboratory Register of Accredited Products (all accredited

products should have scribed on them the appropriate accreditation notation); and

- ii. are connected to the mains and have a standby power supply; and
- iii. are installed in suitable locations on or near the ceiling and as prescribed under Part 3.7.2 of the Building Code of Australia Housing Provisions.

To ensure compliance with this condition, a Compliance Certificate or documentary evidence from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

66. Termite protection which will provide whole of building protection in accordance with Australian Standard 3660 - "Protection of Buildings from Subterranean Termites" is to be provided.

Council has a non chemical policy for termite control but will consider proposals involving physical barriers in combination with approved chemical systems. Handspraying is prohibited.

Where a monolithic slab is used as part of a termite barrier system, the slab shall be constructed in accordance with Australian Standard 2870.1 or as designed by a structural engineer but in either case shall be vibrated to achieve maximum compaction.

To ensure compliance with this condition, a Compliance Certificate or documentary evidence from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate.

#### **CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY**

## 265 To 267 Pacific Highway, Lindfield - Youth Development Service At The Lindfield Library

File: DA1100/03

Ward: Roseville

Applicant: Lindfield Rotary Club

Owner: Ku-ring-gai Council

To determine a development application for the establishment of a Youth Development Service.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Malicki/Hall)

That Development Application No 1100/03 for the establishment of a youth development service, associated landscaping, lighting, fencing and refurbishment of the lower part of the Lindfield Library annex at Lot 8 DP 660564 and Lots 1, 2 & 3

DP212617 being 265-271 Pacific Highway, Lindfield, be approved for a period of two (2) years from the date of the Notice of Determination subject to the following conditions:

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

- 1. The development to be in accordance with Development Application No 1100/03 and Development Application plans prepared by G + A Draftline, reference number 1000/03 1 and 2, dated 5 July 2003 and lodged with Council on 1 September 2003.
- 2. All building works shall comply with the Building Code of Australia.
- 3. The submission of the approved plans to Sydney Water, before any work is commenced to ensure that the proposed structure meets that Authority's By-Laws. Failure to submit these plans before commencing work will render the owner liable to a penalty and may result in the demolition of work.
- 4. The works set forth in the plans and specifications and approved under this consent, once commenced, shall be completed within two (2) years from the date of commencement.
- 5. The approved building shall not be occupied unless the development has been completed in accordance with all conditions of consent and the approved plans and a Occupation Certificate has been issued.
- 6. For the purpose of ensuring the compliance with the terms of the approval, an approved copy of the plan and this Consent and Construction Certificate shall be kept on site at all times.
- 7. For the purpose of safety and amenity of the area, no building materials, plant or the like are to be stored on the road or footpath without the written approval being obtained from the Council beforehand. The pathway shall be kept in a clean, tidy and safe condition during building operations. Council reserves the right, without notice, to rectify any such breach and to charge the cost against the applicant/owner/builder, as the case may be.
- 8. HOURS OF WORK: For the purpose of residential amenity, noise generating work carried out in connection with building and construction operation, including deliveries of building materials and equipment, is restricted to the following hours: Mondays to Fridays inclusive: 7.00am to 5.30pm. Saturdays: 8.00am to 12.00 noon. Sundays and Public Holidays: Not Permitted. The use of the following items of plant on the site is also restricted to the abovementioned hours: compressors, bulldozers, power operated woodworking machines, excavators and loaders, jackhammers, Ramset guns, concrete mixers and concrete delivery wagons, hoists, winches, welding and riveting plant.

Whilst work on Saturdays may be performed until 5.30pm, such work or any associated activities shall not involve the use of any noise generating processes or equipment.

- 9. For the purpose of public safety, a sign shall be erected on the site prior to any work commencing which is clearly visible from a public place stating that unauthorised entry to the site is not permitted and showing the name of the builder or another person responsible for the site and a telephone number for contact outside working hours. The sign may only be removed on satisfactory completion of the works.
- 10. Compliance with the notations overdrawn on the consent plans.
- 11. If the work involved in the erection or demolition of a building:
  - a. is likely to cause pedestrian or vehicular traffic in a public place to be obstructed or rendered inconvenient, or
  - b. building involves the enclosure of a public place, a hoarding or fence must be erected between the work site and the public place.

If necessary, an awning is to be erected, sufficient to prevent any substance from, or in connection with, the work falling into the public place.

The work site must be kept lit between sunset and sunrise if it is likely to be hazardous to persons in the public place.

Any such hoarding, fence or awning is to be removed when the work has been completed.

- 12. The demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the guidelines contained in Australian Standard 2601-1991: The Demolition of Structures.
- 13. Demolition work, including removal of material or debris from the site, on any building in a <u>residential</u> area shall only be carried out during the following hours: Mondays to Fridays inclusive: 7.00am to 5.30pm. Saturdays: 8.00am to 12.00 noon. Sundays and Public Holidays: Not Permitted.
- 14. Dust control measures shall be taken on all demolition sites so as to avoid a nuisance to adjoining properties and harm to the environment.
  - a. A person taking down or demolishing or causing to be taken down or demolished any building or portion of any building shall:
    - i. cause the windows or other openings in the external walls to be close boarded or otherwise covered:
    - ii. cause screens of canvas, hessian, boards, mats or other suitable material to be fitted in appropriate locations;
    - iii. cause areas, components and debris to be wetted down; in such a manner as to minimise, as far as practicable, the nuisance arising from the escape of dust during such taking down or demolition.
  - b. Such person shall not chute, throw or let fall or cause to chute, throw or let fall from the floor to floor or into any basement of such building any

building materials or any other matter so as to cause dust to escape from the building or cause any such material to fall or cast upon a public way to the annoyance, inconvenience, or danger of persons using such public way.

- 15. Your attention is directed to the operation of the Commonwealth Disability Discrimination Act 1992, which may impose greater obligations on providing access to disabled persons other than compliance with the Building Code of Australia. You are advised to seek advice from the Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission (phone (02) 9284 9600) in respect of your application.
- 16. A Management Committee shall be established as proposed in the KYDS Business Plan (page 9).
- 17. A Site User Group shall be established in conjunction with Ku-ring-gai Council staff and with representation from:
  - Lindfield Library
  - KOPWA (Arrunga Aged Self Contained Units)
  - Senior Citizens Resource Centre
  - Lindfield Seniors' Centre
- 18. The hours of operation are restricted to Monday to Friday 10.30am to 5.30pm. Management meetings and administrative duties may be performed by staff outside of these hours.
- 19. The facility shall be supervised at all times by at least one (1) qualified staff member.
- 20. To maintain the established streetscape and general appearance to the Pacific Highway, the overall height of the fence is not to exceed 1200mm above natural ground level.
  - The fence shall be set back 12 metres from the front boundary and shall be visually transparent (such as metal grille or timber picket fence). Design of the fence shall be submitted with the landscaping plan for approval by Council.
- 21. Details of the signage shall be provided to Council for approval and will indicate the exact location, size and design.
- 22. The path shall be constructed of concrete and provide level and unobstructed access to the facility from the Pacific Highway in accordance with the relevant Australian Standard.
- 23. Pedestrian lighting along the footpath shall:
  - be vandal resistant and;
  - illuminate the full length of the travel path in accordance with the relevant Australian Standard.

- 24. Installation of security lighting between the tennis court and the railway line shall be considered in conjunction with the Site User Group Committee.
- 25. Access to the facility shall be limited to the proposed new door on the north-western side only. No access shall be allowed to the parking lot through the existing glass sliding door which will be replaced with a fire exit door in accordance with the relevant Australian Standard.
- 26. The new access door shall be of a transparent design that facilitates the surveillance of the adjoining landscaped area.
- 27. The outdoor area proposed shall be located adjacent to the new access door and shall be landscaped in accordance with CPTED principles.
- 28. The door leading onto the patio/covered area may only be used for access by staff or committee members.
- 29. Chain wire fencing installed shall be demountable or retractable and shall be at least 2m in height. Fencing to be installed in the following locations:
  - Short distance between the tennis shed and the closest tennis court (shown in red)
  - Between the southern corner of the adjoining vehicle show room (Scuderia Veloce) and the closest tennis court (shown in red)
- 30. The buildings are not to be used or occupied until an Occupation Certificate has been issued.
- 31. The number of visitors to the facility shall be limited to a maximum number of ten (10) persons at any one time.
- 32. The screen planting shall be completed prior to the issue of the final Certificate of Compliance and be maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.
- 33. Remove all obsolete materials inside and outside the building (i.e. all materials unless they are absolutely necessary for the functioning of the business).
- 34. Submit an annual fire safety statement attesting to the adequacy of the installed portable fire extinguishers and illuminated exit signs.

# CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF THE CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

- 35. The Long Service Levy is to be paid to Council in accordance with the provisions of Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Payments Act 1986 prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 36. It is a condition of consent that the applicant, builder or developer or person who does the work on this residential building project arrange the Builders Indemnity

Insurance and submit the Certificate of Insurance in accordance with the requirements of Part 6 of the *Home Building Act 1989* to the Council or other Principal Certifying Authority for endorsement of the plans accompanying the Construction Certificate. It is the responsibility of the applicant, builder or developer to arrange the Builder's Indemnity Insurance for residential building work over the value of \$12,000 and to satisfy the Council or other Principal Certifying Authority by the presentation of the necessary Certificate of Insurance so as to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 6 of the *Home Building Act 1989*. The requirements for the Builder's Indemnity Insurance does not apply to commercial or industrial building work or for residential work less than \$12,000, nor to work undertaken by persons holding an Owner/Builder's Permit issued by the Department of Fair Trading (unless the owner/builder's property is sold within 7 years of the commencement of the work).

- 37. Prior to commencing any construction or subdivision work, the following provisions of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act, 1979 (the 'Act') are to be complied with:
  - a. A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section 81A(2)(a) of the Act.
  - b. A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act.
  - c. Council is to be notified in writing, at least two (2) days prior to the intention of commencing buildings works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act.
  - d. Should the development be certified by a Principal Certifying Authority other than Council, a fee for each Part 4A Certificate is to be paid to Council on lodgement of those Certificates with Council.
- 38. A plan detailing screen planting of the gate and fence to Pacific Highway, fencing along pathway, smoking area and the new entrance door shall be submitted to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer, prior to completion of building works.
- 39. A suitable evacuation procedure is to be developed for the building. The procedure is to adopt the RACE Principle and occupants are to receive adequate training (Note:- Council has a standard format and you are welcome to use this as a guide). A detail of the procedure is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. For your information, RACE relates to the following:
  - R Rescue or Remove people in immediate danger
  - A Alarm others
  - C Contain the fire to the room or space of origin
  - E Extinguish if safe to do so or Evacuate

- 40. Submit a report from an Hydraulics Engineer attesting to the adequacy of the installed street hydrant system to service the premises. This report is to consider the ability of the New South Wales Fire Brigade to use the fixtures.
- 41. The building is to be completely serviced by suitable fire hose reels so that no point on the floor of the building is beyond the nozzle end of a fully extended 36 metre hose. Hose reels are to be located not more than 4.0 metres from an exit unless otherwise approved by Council. Detail of location of hose reel to be submitted to Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 42. Suitable portable fire extinguishers complying with the requirements of AS2444 are to be installed in the building. Each extinguisher is to be suitably wall mounted and sign posted. Details of type, size and location to be submitted to Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 43. A complete system of localised fire and smoke alarms complying with the requirements of AS3786 is to be installed within the building. A detail of the proposed system is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 44. A complete system of emergency lighting and illuminated exit signs is to be installed throughout the building. A detail of the system is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

#### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING

45. Prior to the commencement of any work, the Principal Certifying Authority shall be notified in writing of the name and contractor licence number of the owner/builder who intends to carry out the approved works.

#### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 46. Prior to the release of any occupation certificate, a compliance certificate must be obtained from an accredited certifier, certifying that the building works for the building to be occupied comply with the plans and specifications approved by this development consent; and any construction certificate associated with this consent for the buildings to be occupied. If the PCA is not the Council, then this compliance certificate must be submitted to the Council at the same time as the occupation certificate is submitted to the Council in accordance with Clause 151(2) of the E P & A Act regulations.
- 47. Submit a certificate from a suitably qualified electrician indicating the existing electrical wiring system has been inspected and is certified as being adequate, safe and fit for purpose.
- 48. Submit a final fire safety certificate attesting to the adequacy of the newly installed fire hose reels, portable fire extinguishers, emergency lights,

illuminated exit signs, smoke alarms and the practice of the evacuation procedure.

## **BUILDING CONDITIONS**

49. For the purpose of safe ingress and egress the stairs are to be constructed within the following dimensions:

Risers: Maximum 190mm Minimum 115mm Going (Treads): Maximum 355mm Minimum 240mm

Note: Dimensions must also comply with limitations of two (2) Risers and one (1) going equalling a maximum 700mm or minimum 550mm. The Risers and Goings shall be uniform throughout the length of the stairway.

- 50. The ceiling of the lower level is to be lined with one layer of 13 mm fire grade plasterboard so as to achieve a suitable "fire Protective Covering" as defined in BCA96.
- 51. All exit doors are to be fitted with latches that can be opened by single handed lever action on a single device without recourse to a key from the side facing people seeking egress from the building. This includes the existing and proposed exit doors.
- 52. The sliding exit door from the lower ground floor level is to be replaced with a side hung exit door.
- 53. A person taking down or demolishing or causing to be taken down or demolished any building or part thereof shall, upon identifying or suspecting that asbestos is present in the building, immediately notify the Workcover Authority. The Authority is the controlling body for the safe removal, handling and disposal of asbestos. The Authority supervises and monitors contractors engaged in asbestos removal.

The requirements and standards imposed by the Authority, its consultants or contractors shall be complied with.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

de Vulder, Hall, Keays, Kitson and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillor Little

Standing Orders were suspended to deal with the Business Paper items where there are speakers first after a Motion moved by Councillors Kitson and Keays was CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

# 64 To 66 Pacific Highway, Roseville - Demolition Of Existing Commercial Building (No 66) And Additions And Alterations To A Club Building - Supplementary Report

File: DA1366/02

To respond to the issues raised by Council at its Ordinary Meeting of the 9 September 2003 and seek Council's determination of the development application.

#### The following members of the public addressed Council:

D Mill S Guinnis

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Keays/Little)

That the matter be deferred to allow for objectors, affected business/shop owners on that part of the Pacific Highway and affected property owners to be notified of Option 2 and be invited to make submissions in accordance with Council's standard notification policy.

#### CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

# 39 Horace Street, St Ives - Demolition Of Existing Dwelling And Erection Of SEPP 5 Development

File: DA933/02

Ward: St Ives

Applicant: Milan Samardic

Owner: Northside Property Developers

#### S Feakes addressed Council

To determine a development application for the demolition of the existing dwelling and erection of a SEPP 5 development.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Bennett/Hall)

That Development Application No 933/02 for the demolition of the existing dwelling and erection of a SEPP 5 development comprising four (4) dwellings on Lot 14, DP 30789, No 39 Horace Street, St Ives, be refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposal will provide an inadequate level of amenity for future residents, providing inadequate solar access and acoustic and visual privacy.

- 2. The proposed method combined vehicular and pedestrian access is inappropriate and unnecessarily difficult due to the location of columns for porches and balcony supports.
- 3. The proposal makes inadequate provision for on-site parking, with the proposed sitting rooms of Dwellings 1 and 2 capable of habitation as bedrooms.
- 4. The length of the first floor component of the rear building is excessive, resulting in inappropriate bulk and scale for a building in the "traditional rear yard" area of the site.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

Hall, Keays, Kitson, Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillor de Vulder

On request from Councillor Keays the following item was dealt with after a Motion moved by Councillors Little and Bennett was CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

# Heritage Advisory Committee - Minutes Of 2 February 2004

File: S02152

That Council receive and note the minutes of the Heritage Advisory Committee meeting held on 2 February 2004 and endorse two (2) statements prepared in consultation with the Committee.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Keays/Kitson)

- A. That recommendations numbered 7.1, 7.2 and 8.1 from the Heritage Advisory Committee be adopted.
- B. That Council endorses and adopts the statements "The Character of Ku-ringgai" and "Ku-ring-gai a Statement of Heritage Significance" and a report be brought back to Council on 23 March 2004 on how the statements can be incorporated into Council's planning and policy documents.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

Hall, Keays, Kitson and Little

Against the Resolution: Councillors de Vulder and Malicki

The above Resolution was subject to an Amendment which was LOST. The Lost Amendment was:

(Moved: Councillors de Vulder/Malicki)

- A. That recommendations numbered 7.1, 7.2 and 8.1 from the Heritage Advisory Committee be adopted.
- B. That the Ku-ring-gai Statement of Heritage Significance not be endorsed in its current form and that the Heritage Advisory Committee be requested to do more research and provide a more thorough and accurate account of Aboriginal heritage as it relates to the Ku-ring-gai local government area.

#### Councillors Keays and de Vulder departed

### 22-24 Henry Street, Gordon - Residential Flat Building

File: DA1078/03

The following members of the public addressed Council:

D Briggs A Lowenstien

To report on the issues raised at the Council site inspection and seek Council's determination of the development application.

Council adjourned to the Anteroom for a short interval to discuss legal issues with the Press and Public excluded, after a Motion moved by Councillors Bennett and Kitson was CARRIED

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Bennett,

Kitson, Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillor Hall

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Kitson/Malicki)

That Development Application No 1078/03 for the demolition of two existing dwellings and the construction of a residential flat building consisting of 12 x 3 bedroom units, be approved subject to the following conditions:

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

1. The development to be in accordance with Development Application No. 1078/03 and Development Application Plans prepared by Vanovac Associates

- reference number Dwg No's DA 200 to DA 205 and Dwg No's DA 300 & DA 301 dated 12 December 2003.
- 2. All building works shall comply with the requirements of The Building Code of Australia
- 3. The works set forth in the plans and specifications and approved under this consent, once commenced, shall be completed within two (2) years from the date of commencement.
- 4. The approved building shall not be occupied unless the development has been completed in accordance with all conditions of consent and the approved plans and a Occupation Certificate has been issued.
- 5. For the purpose of ensuring the compliance with the terms of the approval, an approved copy of the plan and this Consent and Construction Certificate shall be kept on site at all times.
- 6. For the purpose of safety and amenity of the area, no building materials, plant or the like are to be stored on the road or footpath without the written approval being obtained from the Council beforehand. The pathway shall be kept in a clean, tidy and safe condition during building operations. Council reserves the right, without notice, to rectify any such breach and to charge the cost against the applicant/owner/builder, as the case may be.
- 7. HOURS OF WORK: For the purpose of residential amenity, noise generating work carried out in connection with building and construction operation, including deliveries of building materials and equipment, is restricted to the following hours: Mondays to Fridays inclusive: 7.00am to 5.30pm. Saturdays: 8.00am to 12.00 noon. Sundays and Public Holidays: Not Permitted. The use of the following items of plant on the site is also restricted to the abovementioned hours: compressors, bulldozers, power operated woodworking machines, excavators and loaders, jackhammers, Ramset guns, concrete mixers and concrete delivery wagons, hoists, winches, welding and riveting plant.
- 8. Whilst work on Saturdays may be performed until 5.30pm, such work or any associated activities shall not involve the use of any noise generating processes or equipment.
- 9. For the purpose of public safety, a sign shall be erected on the site prior to any work commencing which is clearly visible from a public place stating that unauthorised entry to the site is not permitted and showing the name of the builder or another person responsible for the site and a telephone number for contact outside working hours. The sign may only be removed on satisfactory completion of the works.
- 10. A sign shall be erected in a prominent position on the site which states the name and contact details of the Principal Certifying Authority.

- 11. All excavations shall be properly guarded and protected with hoardings or fencing to prevent them from being dangerous to life and property.
- 12. Compliance with the notations overdrawn on the consent plans.
- 13. To maintain existing ground levels all excavated material shall be removed from the site.
- 14. Any excavation of rock involving hydraulic or compressed air rock hammers or other excavation equipment shall comply with the requirements of Council's Code for the Control and Regulation of Noise on Building Sites.
- 15. No rock breaking or other machinery for the excavation, drilling or removal of rock shall be used on the site without the prior approval of the Principal Certifying Authority. Should rock breaking or associated machinery be required, the following details are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for consideration:
  - a. The type and size of machinery proposed.
  - b. The routes of all trucks to convey material to and from the site.
  - c. A report by a Geotechnical Engineer detailing the measures recommended in undertaking the work so as to prevent any damage to any adjoining or nearby buildings.
- 16. With regard to the proposed rock breaking the following conditions are to be observed:
  - a. The Geotechnical Engineer shall supervise the works in progress.
  - b. A dilapidation report on adjoining or nearby properties shall be prepared prior to any excavation, rock breaking, or associated work commencing and shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.
  - c. All material removed from or imported to the site shall be loaded, unloaded or conveyed in such a manner that will minimise nuisance. Trucks shall be covered and site controls shall include shaker grids at the exits of the site. All materials falling to any part of the road or footpath or any public place shall be immediately cleaned up.
  - d. All material removed from or imported to the site shall be loaded, unloaded or conveyed in such a manner that will minimise nuisance. Trucks shall be covered and site controls shall include shaker grids at the exits of the site. All materials falling to any part of the road or footpath or any public place shall be immediately cleaned up.
- 17. If an excavation associated with the erection or demolition of a building extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, the person causing the excavation to be made:
  - a. must preserve and protect the building from damage, and
  - b. if necessary, must underpin and support the building in an approved manner, and

- c. must, at least 7 days before excavating below the level of the base of the footings of a building on an adjoining allotment of land, give notice of intention to do so to the owner of the adjoining allotment of land and furnish particulars of the excavation to the owner of the building being erected or demolished.
- 18. The owner of the adjoining allotment of land is not liable for any part of the cost of work carried out for the purposes of this clause, whether carried out on the allotment of land being excavated or on the adjoining allotment of land.
  - In this clause, allotment of land includes a public road and any other public place.
- 19. Toilet facilities are to be provided, within the work site on which work involved in the erection or demolition of a building is being carried out, at the rate of one toilet for every 20 persons or part of 20 persons employed at the site.
- 20. The demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the guidelines contained in Australian Standard 2601-1991: The Demolition of Structures.
- All demolition materials of value for re-use either on-site or elsewhere, shall be separated and made available for re-cycling.
- 22. Access to demolition sites shall be protected as directed by the Principal Certifying Authority by the use of suitable fences or hoardings.
- 23. A person taking down or demolishing or causing to be taken down or demolished any building or part thereof shall, upon identifying or suspecting that asbestos is present in the building, immediately notify the Workcover Authority. The Authority is the controlling body for the safe removal, handling and disposal of asbestos. The Authority supervises and monitors contractors engaged in asbestos removal.
  - The requirements and standards imposed by the Authority, its consultants or contractors shall be complied with.
- 24. Erosion control measures shall be provided on demolition sites to prevent the siltation of watercourses and drainage systems.
- 25. Dust control measures shall be taken on all demolition sites so as to avoid a nuisance to adjoining properties and harm to the environment.
  - a. A person taking down or demolishing or causing to be taken down or demolished any building or portion of any building shall:
    - i. cause the windows or other openings in the external walls to be close boarded or otherwise covered;
    - ii. cause screens of canvas, hessian, boards, mats or other suitable material to be fitted in appropriate locations;

- iii. cause areas, components and debris to be wetted down; in such a manner as to minimise, as far as practicable, the nuisance arising from the escape of dust during such taking down or demolition.
- b. Such person shall not chute, throw or let fall or cause to chute, throw or let fall from the floor to floor or into any basement of such building any building materials or any other matter so as to cause dust to escape from the building or cause any such material to fall or cast upon a public way to the annoyance, inconvenience, or danger of persons using such public way.
- 26. Soil on vacant sites is to be stabilised as soon as possible to prevent erosion and the site shall be kept clear of excess vegetation.
- 27. Existing stormwater lines on the site are to be blocked and made inoperable after buildings are demolished so as to prevent the conveyance of silt or sediments into the gutter or street drainage system.
- 28. All combustible material shall be removed from the site on a daily basis. Material shall not be burnt on the site.
- 29. A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any work site on which work involved in the erection or demolition of a building is being carried out:
  - a. stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited, and
  - b. showing the name of the person in charge of the work site and a telephone number at which that person may be contacted outside working hours.
- 30. Any such sign is to be removed when the work has been completed.

This clause does not apply to:

- a. building work carried out inside an existing building, or
- b. building work carried out on premises that are to be occupied continuously (both during and outside working hours) while the work is being carried out.
- 31. For stormwater control a (minimum) 200mm wide grated channel/trench drain with heavy duty removable galvanised grates is to be provided at the base of the ramped driveway and be connected to the stormwater drainage system.
- 32. For stormwater control all paved areas are to be drained to the main drainage system.
- 33. Stormwater runoff from all hard surfaces, or landscaped areas which are not at natural ground level, shall be piped to the street drainage system via the site drainage system, including on-site detention. Drainage line connections to the kerb shall conform and comply with the detailed requirements contained within Council's Plan No82/024 ("Connections of Drainage Lines to Kerb and R.C. Pipe"). Drainage crossings of the footway area shall be via suitably sized

- galvanised RHS. To ensure compliance with this condition, a Certificate from the installer is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to issue of the Final Compliance Certificate.
- 34. For stormwater control, an On-site Stormwater Detention is to be provided in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual and generally in accordance with the stormwater drainage details by S&E Ivanov Consultancy, drawings 1 and 2, amendment B, dated 8/12/2003. An overflow is to be incorporated that will direct any excess flow to the downstream drainage system and subsoil drainage is to be provided from the underside of the sediment control sump to the outlet line or other approved location.

The system is to be cleaned regularly and maintained to the satisfaction of Council.

- NOTE 1: The on-site stormwater detention system and property drainage system is not to require excavation or fill underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
- NOTE 2: If the applicant wishes to vary the prescribed storage and outflow volumes contained in Council's Stormwater Management Manual, a detailed analysis must be provided following the guidelines set out in Council's requirements for on-site detention with full computations accompanying the submission including a flood routing analysis.
- NOTE 3: All roof, driveway and other hard-surface runoff water is to be intercepted and directed to the on-site stormwater detention system. If some areas of hard-surface are unable to be directed to the detention system an adjustment to the rate of discharge is to be made to attain the required site discharge.
- NOTE 4: If a landscaped surface type detention system is used the storage volume required is to be increased by 20%.
- NOTE 5: The standard Council On-site Stormwater Detention Calculation Sheet is to be completed and included on design drawings.
- 35. The provision of temporary sediment and erosion control facilities and measures are to be installed, prior to the commencement of any works on the site to minimise and/or eliminate unnecessary erosion and loss of sediment. These facilities are to be maintained in working order during construction works and up to the completion of the maintenance period. All sediment traps are to be cleared on a regular basis and after each major storm, and/or as directed by the Principal Certifying Authority, with all silt being removed from the site, or to an approved location within the site.

- 36. The relocation or adjustment of any utility service facilities are to be carried out by the Applicant in accordance with the requirements of the utility authority at no cost to Council.
- 37. The public footways and roadways adjacent to the site are to be maintained in a safe condition, at all times, during the course of the works. A safe pedestrian circulation route and an area free of trip hazards must be maintained at all times on or adjacent to the public footways fronting the construction site. Where circulation is diverted on to the roadway clear directional signage and protective barricades must be installed in accordance with Aust AS1742-3 1996 "Traffic Control Devices for Work on Roads". If pedestrian circulation is not satisfactorily maintained, and action is not taken promptly to rectify the defects, Council may undertake proceedings to stop work.
- 38. The excavation and development works must be undertaken in accordance with the recommendations of the Geotechnical report to be prepared under the conditions of this consent.
- 39. Provision of suitable oil separator units in the drainage systems of basement carparking areas which are designed to remove oils and sediment from any water runoff from these areas prior to discharge to the stormwater system.
- 40. To prevent surface stormwater from entering the building, the finished habitable ground floor level(s) of the building shall be a minimum of 150mm above adjacent finished ground level(s). The entire outside perimeter of the building must have overland flow escape routes which will protect all finished floor levels from flooding during times of complete subsurface drainage blockage.
- 41. A maintenance period of six (6) months shall apply to the work in the public road carried out by the Applicant after it has been completed to Council's satisfaction. In that period, the applicant shall be liable for any section of the work which fails to perform in the manner outlined in Council's specifications, or as would reasonably be expected under the designed conditions.
- 42. Driveways and access ramps must be designed not to scrape the underside of cars. In all respects, the proposed vehicle access and accommodation arrangements must be designed and constructed to comply with Australian Standard AS 2890.1 "Off-Street car parking".
- 43. The access driveway must be widened to provide a minimum clear width of 5.5 metres for the first 6 metres from the frontage roadway (kerb alignment). The driveway may then taper back to the design width. This requirement is for provision for two vehicles to pass at a designated point on the driveway.
- 44. A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained. Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator. Please refer to "Your Business" section of Sydney Water's web site at <a href="www.sydneywater.com.au">www.sydneywater.com.au</a> then the "e-developer" icon or telephone 13 20 92. Following application a "Notice of Requirements" will detail water and sewer extensions to be built and charges to be paid. Please make early contact

with the Coordinator, since building of water/sewer extensions can be time consuming and may impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.

- 45. A Tree Preservation Order exists within the Ku-ring-gai Council area whereby the removal, lopping or destruction of any tree exceeding 5.0 metres in height or 4.0 metres in canopy spread (except where exempt as defined under Council's Tree Preservation Order) without prior written consent of Council is prohibited.
- 46. Release of the Construction Certificate gives automatic approval to the removal ONLY of those trees located on the subject property within the footprint of a proposed new building/structure or within 3.0 metres of a proposed new dwelling. Where this application is for a building/structure other than a dwelling then ONLY trees within the area to be occupied by this building/structure may be removed. Other trees SHALL NOT be REMOVED or DAMAGED without an application being made under Council's Tree Preservation Order.
- 47. The landscape works shall be completed prior to issue of final Certificate of Compliance and maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.
- 48. REMOVAL of the following tree/s from Council's nature strip to permit vehicular access shall be undertaken at no cost to Council by an experienced Tree Removal Contractor/Arborist holding Public Liability Insurance amounting to a minimum cover of \$10,000,000.

Tree/Location

*Alectryon tomentosus* (Rambutan) x 1 Henry Street naturestrip within proposed driveway crossover.

This tree is to be replaced with a street tree of an appropriate species in consultation with Council's Landscape Development Officer.

- 49. Tree roots between 10mm and 50mm diameter, severed during excavation, shall be cut cleanly by hand and the tree subsequently treated with a root growth hormone and wetting agent, by an experienced Arborist/Horticulturist with a minimum qualification of the Horticulture Certificate or Tree Surgery Certificate.
- 50. No tree roots of 50mm or greater in diameter located within the specified radius of the trunk/s of the following, tree/s shall be severed or injured in the process of any site works during the construction period.

Tree/Location Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus species (Eucalypt) 9.0 metres

South east site corner

Ceratopetalum gummiferum (NSW Xmas Bush) 3.0 metres

Adjacent to southern site boundary

51. Excavation for the installation of CONDUITS/SEWER/STORMWATER/GAS within the specified radius of the trunk/s of the following tree/s shall be carried out using the thrust boring method. Thrust boring shall be carried out at least 600mm beneath natural ground surface at the tree/s to minimise damage to tree/s root system. Documentary evidence of compliance with this condition shall be submitted to Council with the final Certificate of Compliance.

Tree/Location Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus species (Eucalypt) 9.0 metres

South east site corner

52. The applicant shall ensure that at all times during the construction period no activities, storage or disposal of materials shall take place beneath the canopy of any tree protected under Council's Tree Preservation Order.

- 53. On completion of the LANDSCAPE WORKS/TREE PLANTING OR SCREEN PLANTING, a Landscape Architect or qualified Landscape Designer shall submit a report certifying correct installation, faithful to the landscape plan to the Principal Certifying Authority with a copy to Council, prior to issue of final Certificate of Compliance.
- 54. All builders' refuse, spoil and/or material unsuitable for use in landscape areas shall be removed from the site on completion of the building works.
- 55. To preserve the ongoing health and vigour of existing trees to be retained on site the proposed masonry wall within the front setback on the southern site boundary is to be deleted.
  - 56. A construction management plan must be submitted for the approval of Council's Development Engineer before the commencement of demolition, excavation or construction works. The Plan must:
  - a. Describe the anticipated impact of the construction works on:

local traffic routes pedestrian circulation adjacent to the building site; and on-street parking in the local area; and;

b. Describe the means proposed to:

manage construction works to minimise such impacts; provide for the standing of vehicles during construction; provide for the movement of trucks to and from the site, and deliveries to the site; and

c. Show the locations of:

any site sheds and any anticipated use of cranes and concrete pumps; any areas of Council property on which it is proposed to install a construction zone, or to erect structures such as hoardings, scaffolding or shoring, or to excavate.

The Plan must make provision for all materials, plants, etc. to be stored within the development site at all times during construction. Structures or works on Council property such as hoardings, scaffolding shoring or excavation need separate consent from Council. Standing of cranes and concrete pumps on Council property will need consent on each occasion.

Note: A minimum of eight weeks will be required for assessment. Work must not commence until the Construction Management Plan is approved. Failure to comply with this condition may result in fines and proceedings to stop work.

57. To maximise privacy and to reduce the overlooking of adjacent properties, it is required that a planter box with a minimum planting width of 1.0 metre be included adjacent to the roof top terraces, to allow plantings for small shrubs to attain a minimum height of 1.0 metre.

# PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY DEMOLITION, EXCAVATION OR BUILDING WORKS

58. A Geotechnical Report with supporting information (including borehole investigations of founding material) must be prepared and submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval, prior to issue of a Construction Certificate and prior to commencement of any excavation on the site. The report must include geotechnical investigations to determine the design parameters appropriate to the specific development and site. This would typically include:

Location of nearby foundations/footings (site and neighbouring)

Proposed method of excavation

Permanent and temporary support measures for excavation

Potential settlements affecting footings/foundations

Ground-water and associated impacts (if any)

Proposed batter slopes

Potential vibration caused by method of excavation

De-watering including seepage and off site disposal rate (where required)

The Report must also include professional recommendations on appropriate construction techniques to ameliorate any potential adverse impacts. The report is to be prepared by a suitably qualified and practising Geotechnical Engineer with previous experience in such investigations and construction techniques. All works must proceed in accordance with the recommendations of the geotechnical report to be prepared.

59. Prior the commencement of any works on the site and prior to issue of the Construction Certificate the Applicant shall submit, for concurrence by Council Engineers, a Construction and Traffic Management Plan specific to the subject site. This is due to the proximity of site to schools and the station. The plan must be prepared by a qualified civil/traffic engineer in general accordance with the documents SAA HB81.1 – 1996 – Field Guide for Traffic Control at Works on

Roads – Part 1 and RTA Traffic Control at Work Sites (1998). The following matters must be addressed:

## **Heavy Vehicle Routes**

Details of the proposed route of heavy vehicles servicing the site. Light traffic roads and those subject to a load limit are to be avoided.

## Safe Ingress and Egress

How the site will be safely accessed by all vehicles servicing the site including provision for forward ingress and egress and details of traffic control for the site, including provision of a flagperson to control vehicle movements to and from the frontage street.

How safe egress for vehicles will be controlled on those occasions where forward egress is not possible.

How pedestrians (particularly school children) will be safely managed across the frontage of the site.

### Parking Control

The provision of on-site parking for employee, tradesperson and construction vehicles.

Maintenance of existing "No Parking" restrictions over the site frontage.

## **Stages**

The Plan must recognise the different stages of the work, including site establishment, bulk excavation, concrete pours and tradesperson and landscaper access, and specify the traffic management requirements of each stage.

NOTE 1: The Traffic Control Plan shall be submitted to and reviewed by council, attention Development Engineer. A written response from Council shall be obtained prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. The Plan shall be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced traffic consultant and be certified by this person as being in accordance with the requirements of the above-mentioned documents and the requirements of this condition. Evidence of RTA concurrence, as required above, is to be lodged concurrently with Council. An assessment fee applies to the review of the Plan

NOTE 2: The traffic management measures contained in the approved plan shall be implemented in accordance with the plan prior to the commencement of any works on-site including excavation.

CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

60. The Long Service Levy is to be paid to Council in accordance with the provisions of Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Payments Act 1986 prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

Note: Required if cost of works exceed \$25,000.00.

- 61. The Infrastructure Restorations Fee calculated in accordance with the Council's adopted schedule of Fees and Charges is to be paid to the Council prior to any earthworks or construction commencing. The applicant or builder/developer will be held responsible for and liable for the cost any damage caused to any Council property or for the removal of any waste bin, building materials, sediment, silt, or any other article as a consequence of doing or not doing anything to which this consent relates. "Council Property" includes footway, footpath paving, kerbing, guttering, crossings, street furniture, seats, litter bins, trees, shrubs, lawns mounds, bushland, and similar structures or features on road reserves or any adjacent public place. Council will undertake minor restoration work as a consequence of the work at this site in consideration of the "Infrastructure Restorations Fee" lodged with the Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. This undertaking by the Council does not absolve the applicant or Builder/developer of responsibility for ensuring that work or activity at this site does not jeopardise the safety or public using adjacent public areas or of making good or maintaining "Council property" (as defined) during the course of this project.
- 62. Prior to commencing any construction or subdivision work, the following provisions of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act, 1979 (the 'Act') are to be complied with:
  - a. A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section 81A(2)(a) of the Act.
  - b. A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act
  - c. Council is to be notified in writing, at least two (2) days prior to the intention of commencing buildings works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act.
  - d. Should the development be certified by a Principal Certifying Authority other than Council, a fee for each Part 4A Certificate is to be paid to Council on lodgement of those Certificates with Council.
- 63. A contribution is to be paid for the provision, extension or augmentation of community facilities, recreation facilities, open space and administration that will, or are likely to be, required as a consequence of development in the area.

TOTAL CONTRIBUTION FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT OF TEN (10) ADDITIONAL DWELLINGS IS CURRENTLY \$259,935.30. The amount of the payment shall be in accordance with the Section 94 charges as at the date of payment. The charges may vary at the time of payment in accordance with Council's Section 94 Contributions Plan to reflect changes in land values, construction costs and the consumer price index.

This contribution shall be paid to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and the amount payable shall be in accordance with the Council's adopted Section 94 Contributions Plan for Residential Development, effective from 20 December 2000, calculated for additional person as follows:

1.	Preparation of New Residents Kit	\$10.98
2.	New Resident Survey	\$9.87
3.	New child care centre	
	(including land acquisition and construction of facility)	\$252.13
4.	Additions/alterations to Acron Rd child care centre	
	for additional 20 places	\$2.41
5.	New Library bookstock	\$17.95
6.	New Public Art	\$2.93
7.	Acquisition of Open Space - Gordon	\$7,851.00
8.	Koola Park upgrade and reconfiguration	\$143.09
9.	North Turramurra Sportsfield development	\$986.80
10.	Section 94 2000-2003 Study and Interim Plan preparation	1 cost\$49.34
11.	Section 94 Officer for period of Plan 2000-2003	\$118.42

To obtain the total contribution figure the following table of occupancy rates is to be used:

### OCCUPANCY RATES FOR DIFFERENT DWELLING SIZES

Small dwelling (under 75 sqm)	1.25 persons
Medium dwelling (75 - under 110 sqm)	1.75 persons
Large dwelling (110 – under 150sqm)	2.75 persons
Very Large dwelling (150sqm or more)	3.5 persons
New Lot	3.5 persons

- 64. Prior to issue of the Construction Certificate the Applicant shall submit, for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA), details showing the access driveway widened to provide a minimum clear width of 5.5 metres for the first 6 metres from the frontage roadway (kerb alignment). The driveway may then taper back to the design width.
- 65. Prior to issue of the Construction Certificate the Applicant shall submit, for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA), design details for provision of a (minimum) 3000 litre rainwater tank(s) within the subject property. This is to promote water-reuse on the site. The tank(s) shall designed to capture and retain runoff from at least one roof downpipe after which runoff bypasses the tank and reverts to the main drainage system. Design drawings are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer.
  - NOTE 1: The tank is to be located at or above existing natural ground level.
  - NOTE 2: If abutting a wall of the dwelling, the tank must be below the eaves line.

- NOTE 3: The tank must not be located on the street façade of a block.
- NOTE 4: If the tank is to be attached to a structure then a structural engineer is to certify the adequacy of the design of the structure to carry the tank
- NOTE 5: Maximum height of the tank is 1.8 metres above natural ground level where installed along the side boundary setback of a dwelling.
- NOTE 6: The tank is to be a commercially manufactured tank designed for the use of water supply and to be installed in accordance with manufacturers specifications.
- NOTE 7: The tank is to be located above an available landscaped area so that the tank may be readily used for watering purposes.
- NOTE 8: The tank is to be fitted with a standard garden tap or similar which is to be clearly marked as not to be used for drinking purposes.
- NOTE 9: The tank is to be fitted with measures to prevent mosquito breeding.
- NOTE 10: Upon completion, certification from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority with respect to this condition being satisfied
- 66. The property drainage system (including but not limited to gutters, downpipes, pits, joints, flushing, pumping facilities and all ancillary plumbing) shall be designed and based upon a 235mm/hour rainfall intensity for a duration of five (5) minutes (1:50 year storm recurrence) for impervious surfaces. Design drawings and calculations are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual and the national Plumbing and Drainage Code. These must be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
  - NOTE 1: The property drainage system is not to require excavation or fill underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
  - NOTE 2: If the proposed drainage system involves piping underneath or within the building then the designer is to certify that the design is in accordance with AS3500.3.2:1998 and the BCA.
  - NOTE 3: All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, are to be safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.

- 67. Full construction drawings of the proposed method of achieving Council requirements for on-site stormwater detention and all supporting calculations are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced civil/hydraulic engineer. These must be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 68. DRIVEWAYS AND FOOTPATHS: Approval of this Development Application is for works wholly within the property and does not imply approval of footpath or driveway levels, materials or location within the road reserve regardless of whether this information is shown on the Application.

Footpath and driveway levels at the property boundary/road alignment are to be obtained from Council prior to release of the Construction Certificate. All footpaths and driveways are to be constructed strictly in accordance with Council's specifications "Construction of Gutter Crossings and Footpath Crossings". This is issued with alignment levels after completing the necessary application form at Customer Services and payment of the appropriate fee.

The grading of such footpaths or driveways outside the property are to comply with Council's standard requirements. The suitability of the grade of such paths or driveways inside the property is the sole responsibility of the applicant, and this may be affected by the alignment levels fixed by Council.

- Note 1: The construction of footpaths and driveways outside the property, in materials other than those approved by Council, is not permitted and Council may require immediate removal of unauthorised installations.
- Note 2: When completing the request for driveway levels application from Council, the applicant must attach a cop y of the relevant Development Application drawing which indicates the position and proposed level (if applicable) of the proposed driveway at the boundary alignment. Failure to submit this information may delay processing.
- 69. Submission, for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate, of a Soil and Erosion Control Plan prepared in accordance with the NSW Department of Housing document "Managing Urban Stormwater Soils and Construction" (1998) by a suitably qualified and experienced engineer or surveyor. Such controls should include but not be limited to appropriately sized sediment basins, diversion systems, appropriate controls for each stage of works identified and barrier fencing which maximises and protects areas which are not to be disturbed. The plan must also specify inspection and maintenance regimes and responsibilities and rehabilitation measures.
- 70. Provision to Council, prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, of a \$10,000.00 (ten thousand dollars) bond. This is to cover the restoration by Council of any damage to Council's infrastructure in the public road along the frontage, or within close proximity to the subject development, caused as a

result of construction works relating to the subject development. The bond shall be refundable following completion of all works relating to the proposed development, or at the end of any maintenance period stipulated by consent conditions, upon approval by Council's Engineers. Council shall have full authority to make use of the bond for such restoration works as deemed necessary by Council in the following circumstances:

- a. Where the damage constitutes a hazard in which case Council may make use of the bond immediately.
- b. The damage has not been repaired, or incomplete works have not been completed, by the Applicant within 48 hours of the issue by Council in writing of instructions to undertake such repairs or works.
- 71. Provision of a basement stormwater pump-out system for the driveway ramp runoff. The system is to comprise both duty and back-up pumps and be designed for the 100 year runoff and have an emergency alarm system. The system is to include a holding well which has a storage capacity equivalent to the runoff volume from a 2 hour 100 year ARI storm event so that the basement is safeguarded from flooding during power failure for such a storm over such a period. Design drawings which include holding well volume calculations, inflow and outflow calculations, pump specification and duty curves are to be prepared by a qualified civil/hydraulic engineer and submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 72. An amended plan and specification of the proposed landscape works for the site shall be prepared in accordance with Council's Development Control Plan No 38, by a Landscape Designer to enhance the amenity of the built environment and protect the Ku-ring-gai landscape character. The plan must be submitted to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and be approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer prior to the commencement of works. A Landscape Assessment fee of \$460.00 will be payable on lodgement of the required landscape plan, in accordance with the following schedule.

Landscape Plan Certification Fees

Minor Landscaping Works \$50.00 New Dwellings/Dual Occupancies \$120.00

Multi-Unit Housing \$100.00 plus \$30.00 per unit Commercial \$100.00 plus 10 cents per m<sup>2</sup>

The landscape plans are to ensure that all trees on the adjoining heritage property "Tulkiyan" are retained.

73. A plan detailing screen planting of the unit building adjacent to the southern and northern site boundaries shall be submitted to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer, prior to completion of building works. The plan shall incorporate species capable of attaining a height of 12.0 metres.

- 74. That the landscaping to the street frontage is to be of a height at maturity comparable to the maximum height of the approved development.
- 75. The trees to be planted shall be maintained in a healthy and vigorous condition until they attain a height of 5.0 metres whereby they will be protected by Council's Tree Preservation Order. Any of the trees found faulty, damaged, dying or dead shall be replaced with the same species.
- 76. A CASH BOND/BANK GUARANTEE of \$10 000.00 shall be lodged with Council as a Landscape Establishment Bond prior to the release of the Construction Certificate to ensure that the landscape works are installed and maintained in accordance with the approved landscape plan or other landscape conditions.

Fifty percent (50%) of the this bond will be refunded upon issue of the final Certificate of Compliance, where landscape works as approved have been satisfactorily installed. The balance of the bond will be refunded 3 years after issue of the building certificate, where landscape works has been satisfactorily established and maintained

It is the responsibility of the applicant to notify Council in relation to the refunding of the bond at the end of the 3 year period. Where a change of ownership occurs during this period it is the responsibility of the applicant to make all arrangements regarding transference of the bond and to notify Council of such.

77. A cash bond/bank guarantee of \$8 000.00 shall be lodged with Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate to ensure that the following trees are maintained in the same condition as found prior to commencement site development work.

The bond will be returned following issue of the final Certificate of Compliance, provided the trees are undamaged.

In the event that any specified trees are found damaged, dying or dead as a result of any negligence by the applicant or its agent, or as a result of the construction works at any time during the construction period, Council will have the option to demand the whole or part therefore of the bond.

Tree/Location

Eucalyptus species (Eucalypt) South eastern site corner

78. The size of the garbage storage area is to comply with the requirements of Development Control Plan No.40 – Waste Management. Details of designated areas for recyclables and collection containers are to be submitted to Council for approval prior to the release of the Construction Certificate.

### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING

79. A photographic archival record of the building and landscape elements to be demolished is to be submitted, to the satisfaction of Council's heritage officer, prior to the commencement of demolition work or work commencing.

The photographic archival recording is to be bound in an A4 format and is to include the following:

- Site plan at a scale of 1:200 (or 1:500 if appropriate) of all structures and major landscape elements including their relationship to the street and adjoining properties.
- Postcard sized photographs of:
  - i. Each elevation;
  - ii. Each structure and landscape feature;
  - iii. Internal or external details if nominated in Council's heritage officer's assessment report; and
  - iv. Views to the subject property from each street and laneway or public space

Each photograph to be mounted, labelled and cross referenced in accordance with recognised archival recording practice.

One original coloured photographic set and a coloured photocopy are to be submitted to the satisfaction of Council's heritage officer prior to the commencement of demolition work. The original will be retained by Council and the coloured photocopy will be provided to the Ku-ring-gai Historical Society.

- 80. Prior to the commencement of any work, the Principal Certifying Authority shall be notified in writing of the name and contractor licence number of the owner/builder who intends to carry out the approved works.
- 81. To preserve the following tree/s, no work shall commence until the area beneath the canopy of the following tree/s is fenced off at the specified radius from the trunk to prevent any activities, storage or the disposal of materials within the fenced area. The fence/s shall be maintained intact until the completion of all demolition/building work on site.

Tree/Location Radius in Metres

Ceratopetalum gummiferum (NSW Xmas Bush) 3.0 metres

Adjacent to southern site boundary

Eucalyptus species (Eucalypt) 7.0 metres

South east site corner

- 82. The tree protection fence shall be constructed of galvanised pipe at 2.4 metre spacings and connected by securely attached chain mesh fencing to a minimum height of 1.8 metres prior to work commencing.
- 83. Upon completion of the installation of the required tree protection measures you are required to contact Council on telephone 9424 0888 or facsimile 9418 1117 to arrange an inspection of the site, in this regard a minimum of 24 hours notice is required. Following the carrying out of a satisfactory inspection and subject to the payment of all relevant monies and compliance with any other conditions of approval, work may commence.

# CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO OCCUPATION, ISSUE OF THE OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

84. Prior to the release of any occupation certificate, a compliance certificate must be obtained from an accredited certifier, certifying that the building works for the building to be occupied comply with the plans and specifications approved by this development consent; and any construction certificate associated with this consent for the buildings to be occupied. If the PCA is not the Council, then this compliance certificate must be submitted to the Council at the same time as the occupation certificate is submitted to the Council in accordance with Clause 151(2) of the E P & A Act regulations.

Without further written Consent of Council the development is to comply with the following indices:

- a. Maximum floor space ratio (1.08:1).
- b. Maximum floor space area (1831m<sup>2</sup>).
- c. Maximum number of car parking spaces (25).
- d. Minimum number of visitor car parking spaces (4).
- e. Maximum built-upon area (47%).
- f. Maximum height of top floor ceiling not to exceed RL 125.61

A Surveyor's Certificate is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority confirming compliance with a, b, e and f above prior to occupation.

85. A contractor with specialist excavation experience must undertake the excavations for the basement level. A suitably qualified and practising geotechnical engineer must supervise the excavation procedure. At the completion of the works and prior to occupation or issue of the Occupation Certificate, this engineer is to provide certification to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) that excavation and construction of the basement level, including temporary and permanent shoring and retention measures, have been carried out:-

According the relevant Australian Standards and guidelines, and According to the recommendations of the geotechnical report prepared prior to the commencement of works, and

In a manner that ensures that the structural amenity of adjoining structures and property is properly maintained.

- 86. Prior to occupation or the issue of the Occupation Certificate the Applicant shall submit, for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA), certification from a qualified civil/traffic engineer that the as-constructed carpark, including driveway ramp grades, complies with Australian Standard 2890.1 1993 "Offstreet car parking".
- 87. Construction of the property stormwater drainage works is to be supervised and upon completion certified by a suitably qualified and experienced hydraulic engineer or surveyor, prior to occupation or issue of the Occupation Certificate, that:

The works were carried out and completed in accordance with the approved plans.

All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and basement floor levels, are safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices. A Works-as-Executed drawing of the property stormwater drainage system is also to be furnished by the Certifier prior to Occupation.

88. Construction of the On-site Stormwater Detention System is to be supervised and upon completion a Certificate and Works-as-Executed (WAE) plan is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval, prior to occupation or issue of the Occupation Certificate. Certification is to be provided by a suitably qualified civil/hydraulic engineer and the WAE plan is to be prepared by a registered surveyor. The certifying engineer must to also complete and submit Council's standard On-site Stormwater Detention Certification sheet.

The Certificate is to be with respect to compliance with:

Compatibility of the drainage system with the approved plans

The soundness of the structure.

The adequacy of the outlet control mechanism to achieve the discharge as specified.

The capacity of the detention storage as specified.

The size of the orifice or pipe control fitted.

The maximum depth of storage over the outlet control.

The adequate provision of debris screen(s).

The inclusion of weepholes in the base of the outlet control pit.

The provision of an emergency overflow path.

All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, being safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.

The Works-as-Executed drawing(s) are to include all relevant levels including:

invert levels surface or pavement levels floor levels including adjacent property floor levels maximum water surface level to be achieved in the storage zone dimensions of basin(s), tank(s), pit(s), etc. location(s) of basin(s), tank(s) and distances from buildings, boundaries, and easements, etc. storage volume(s) provided and supporting calculations size of orifice(s)

- 89. The creation of a Positive Covenant and Restriction on the Use of Land under the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the on-site stormwater detention, re-use and pollution control facilities on the property (which expressions include all pipes, pits, pumps, rising mains, ancillary and delivery plumbing, tanks, holding structures) prior to occupation or issue of the Occupation Certificate. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's "draft terms of Section 88B instrument for protection of on-site detention facilities" (and modified to include items above) and to the satisfaction of Council. For existing Titles, the Positive Covenant and the Restriction on the use of Land is to be created through an application to the Land Titles Office in the form of a request using forms 13PC and 13RPA.
- 90. In order to maintain Council's database of as-constructed on-site stormwater detention systems, if the Principal Certifying Authority is not Council then a copy of the approved stormwater detention design, the works-as-executed drawings and the Engineer's certification of the as-constructed system is to be provided to Council, attention Development Engineer, prior to occupation, issue of the Occupation Certificate and/or Subdivision Certificate.
- 91. Prior to occupation or issue of the Occupation Certificate, all redundant driveway crossings and kerb laybacks must be reinstated as verge and kerb and/or gutter to the satisfaction of Council's Engineer. Works to match existing adjacent infrastructure. All bridge gutter crossings must be removed, and the road shoulder levelled and regraded to suit.
- 92. Prior to occupation or issue of the Occupation Certificate, an easement for waste collection is to be provided. This is to permit legal access for Council, and Council's contractors, and their vehicles over the subject property for the purpose of collecting waste from the property. The terms of the easement are to indemnify Council, and Council's contractors, against damages to private land or property whilst in the course of carrying out waste collection services. The terms of the easement are to be generally in accordance with Council's draft terms for an easement for waste collection.
- 93. Any infrastructure within the road reserve which has been damaged as a result of construction works on the subject site must be repaired to the full satisfaction of Council.

#### **BUILDING CONDITIONS**

94. The following are required details and must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority *prior to issue of the Construction Certificate*. Any matter listed below must have a Certificate attached from a suitably qualified person to

the effect that the design or matter complies with the relevant design Standard or Code which the Certificate must identify.

- a. Details prepared by a practicing structural engineer for all or any reinforced concrete, structural steel or timber framing..
- b Retaining walls and associated drainage.
- c. Wet area waterproofing details complying with the Building Code of Australia.
- d Mechanical ventilation details complying with Australian Standard 1668-1993 Mechanical Ventilation & Airconditioning.
- e. Glazing details complying with AS 1288-1989 Glass in Buildings and Installation Code.
- f. Stormwater disposal details complying with Council's Stormwater Management Manual and/or other conditions of this consent.
- 95. The building works are to be inspected during construction by the Council, an accredited certifier or other suitably qualified person/s (as applicable) and a Compliance Certificate shall be issued prior to proceeding to the subsequent stages of construction, encompassing not less than the following stages:
  - a. All sediment and erosion control and tree protection measures and installations in place on the site prior to the commencement of any earthworks, excavations or other work.
  - b. Any pier holes and/or foundation material.
  - c. Any steel reinforcement prior to placement of concrete. This includes all reinforcement of floors, slabs, trenches, columns, beams and stairs (if components of this structure).
  - d. Any structural components (i.e. timber framework, structural steelwork or the like) before fixing any lining or covering.
  - e. Any stormwater drainage works prior to covering.
  - f. The completed landscape works in accordance with the approved plans.
  - g. The completed structure prior to occupation.

The required inspection fees (which also covers the issue of the Compliance Certificate) are to be paid to the Council before the issue of a Construction Certificate for this development.

If inspections are to be carried out by Council, 24 hours notice is required by Council's Department of Environmental and Regulatory Services, by telephoning Customer Service on 9424 0888 during business hours (8.30am to 4.30pm) or by facsimile on 9418 1117.

Note: Inspections of work which is found to be defective or not ready will attract a reinspection fee. Please cancel bookings which will not be ready for inspection.

96. To ensure compliance with this determination the building shall be set out by a Registered Surveyor and the Survey Report shall be lodged with the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the external wall construction proceeding above floor level.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors de

Vulder, Hall, Keays, Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillors Bennett and Kitson

## 132 127 Bannockburn Road, Turramurra

File: DA228/03

## The following members of the public addressed Council:

D Green D Reid

To provide a response to Council's resolution of 24 February 2004 to enable determination of Development Application No 228/03

### Resolved:

(Moved: Mayor, Councillor Cross/Councillor Malicki)

That Development Application No 228/03 for the alterations and additions to an existing dwelling and construction of a new dwelling to create a Detached Dual Occupancy at Lot 20 in DP 16889 being 127 Bannockburn Road, Turramurra be approved for a period of two years subject to the following conditions and the applicant withdrawing the appeal:

#### **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

- 1. The development to be in accordance with Development Application No 228/03 and Development Application plans prepared by Lindsay Little & Associates Pty Ltd, reference number Job No 2756/02 Sheets 1, 2 and 3, dated 18 November 2002 and lodged with Council on 5 September 2003.
- 2. All building works shall comply with the Building Code of Australia.
- 3. The works set forth in the plans and specifications and approved under this consent, once commenced, shall be completed within two (2) years from the date of commencement.
- 4. The opening of any footway, roadway, road shoulder or any part of the road reserve shall not be carried out without a Road Opening Permit being obtained from the Council (upon payment of the required fee) beforehand.
- 5. For the purpose of ensuring the compliance with the terms of the approval, an approved copy of the plan and this Consent and Construction Certificate shall be kept on site at all times.

- 6. For the purpose of safety and amenity of the area, no building materials, plant or the like are to be stored on the road or footpath without the written approval being obtained from the Council beforehand. The pathway shall be kept in a clean, tidy and safe condition during building operations. Council reserves the right, without notice, to rectify any such breach and to charge the cost against the applicant/owner/builder, as the case may be.
- 7. HOURS OF WORK: For the purpose of residential amenity, noise generating work carried out in connection with building and construction operation, including deliveries of building materials and equipment, is restricted to the following hours: Mondays to Fridays inclusive: 7.00am to 5.30pm. Saturdays: 8.00am to 12.00 noon. Sundays and Public Holidays: Not Permitted. The use of the following items of plant on the site is also restricted to the abovementioned hours: compressors, bulldozers, power operated woodworking machines, excavators and loaders, jackhammers, Ramset guns, concrete mixers and concrete delivery wagons, hoists, winches, welding and riveting plant.

Whilst work on Saturdays may be performed until 5.30pm, such work or any associated activities shall not involve the use of any noise generating processes or equipment.

- 8. For the purpose of public safety, a sign shall be erected on the site prior to any work commencing which is clearly visible from a public place stating that unauthorised entry to the site is not permitted and showing the name of the builder or another person responsible for the site and a telephone number for contact outside working hours. The sign may only be removed on satisfactory completion of the works.
- 9. A sign shall be erected in a prominent position on the site which states the name and contact details of the Principal Certifying Authority.
- 10. For the purpose of maintaining visual amenity, no permanent electricity supply poles are to be erected forward of the building setback without the prior Consent of Council. It is the onus of the applicant to consult with the authorised statutory electricity provider prior to construction commencing to ensure that direct connection to the building is possible. Details of any proposed permanent pole must be submitted to and approved by Council prior to installation.
- 11. All excavations and backfilling associated with the erection or demolition of a building must be executed safely and in accordance with appropriate professional standards.
  - All excavations associated with the erection or demolition of a building must be properly guarded and protected to prevent them from being dangerous to life or property.
- 12. The demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the guidelines contained in Australian Standard 2601-1991: The Demolition of Structures.

- 13. The applicant's attention is directed to any obligations or responsibilities under the Dividing Fences Act in respect of adjoining property owner/s which may arise from this application and it is advised that enquiries in this regard may be made at the nearest Local Court.
- 14. For the purpose of energy efficiency and child safety all new or replaced hot water systems shall deliver hot water to a maximum 50°C at the outlet of all sanitary fixtures used for personal hygiene.
- 15. For the purpose of water conservation all water closets installed within the building/addition are to have a maximum 6/3 litre dual flush cistern.
- 16. For the purpose of water conservation all shower heads are to be fitted with reduced water flow devices.
- 17. So as to ensure safe egress and ingress within the development and to ensure the security of the occupants, adequate lighting is to be provided to all paths, accessways, parking areas and building entries. Spillage from any such lighting shall be contained within the property boundaries.
- 18. A Tree Preservation Order exists within the Ku-ring-gai Council area whereby the removal, lopping or destruction of any tree exceeding 5.0 metres in height or 4.0 metres in canopy spread (except where exempt as defined under Council's Tree Preservation Order) without prior written consent of Council is prohibited.
  - Release of the Construction Certificate gives automatic approval to the removal ONLY of those trees located on the subject property within the footprint of a proposed new building/structure or within 3.0 metres of a proposed new dwelling. Where this application is for a building/structure other than a dwelling then ONLY trees within the area to be occupied by this building/structure may be removed. Other trees SHALL NOT be REMOVED or DAMAGED without an application being made under Council's Tree Preservation Order.
- 19. The landscape works shall be completed prior to issue of final Certificate of Compliance and maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.
- 20. Topsoil shall be stripped from areas to be developed and stock-piled within the site. Stock-piled topsoil on the site shall be located outside drainage lines and be protected from run-on water by suitably positioned diversion banks. Where the period of storage will exceed fourteen (14) days stock-piles are to be seeded or sprayed with an appropriate emulsion solution to minimise particle movement.
- 21. Any imported fill material shall be restricted to material from the local soil landscape on which the site is located or be derived from sandstone geology sites.
- 22. Tree roots between 10mm and 50mm diameter, severed during excavation, shall be cut cleanly by hand and the tree subsequently treated with a root growth hormone and wetting agent, by an experienced Arborist/Horticulturist with a

minimum qualification of the Horticulture Certificate or Tree Surgery Certificate.

23. Paving works within the specified radius of the trunk/s of the following tree/s shall be constructed to ensure that existing water infiltration and gaseous exchange to the tree/s root system is maintained. Details for the paving shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval by a suitably qualified professional prior to the commencement of paving construction:

Tree/Location

Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum) Southern boundary nature strip 5.0 metres

24. No mechanical excavation of the proposed structure shall be undertaken within the specified radius of the trunk/s of the following tree/s until root pruning by hand along the perimeter line of such works is completed:

Tree/Location

Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum) Southern boundary nature strip 5.0 metres

25. To preserve health and condition of the following trees, excavation within the primary root zone shall be directly supervised by an experienced Arborist/Horticulturist with a minimum qualification of the Horticulture Certificate or Tree Surgery Certificate. Documentary evidence of compliance with this condition shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority with a copy to Council, prior to issue of final Certificate of Compliance.

Tree/Location

Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum)

Southern boundary, nature strip

5.0 metres

- 26. The applicant shall ensure that at all times during the construction period no activities, storage or disposal of materials shall take place beneath the canopy of any tree protected under Council's Tree Preservation Order.
- 27. On completion of the landscape works, a Landscape Architect or qualified Landscape Designer shall submit a report certifying correct installation, faithful to the landscape plan to the Principal Certifying Authority with a copy to Council, prior to issue of final Certificate of Compliance.
- 28. All builders' refuse, spoil and/or material unsuitable for use in landscape areas shall be removed from the site on completion of the building works.
- 29. For stormwater control the accessway directly in front of the garages should be graded away from the door and towards an escape route. It is to be configured so that overland flow, off the accessway does not flow towards the garage door.

- 30. For stormwater control all paved areas are to be drained to the main drainage system.
- 31. For stormwater control, (where the grade of the driveway slopes towards the footway), a 150mm wide grated drain with heavy duty removable galvanised grates is to be located within the property at the intersection of the driveway and Council's footway to collect all surface water from the driveway. The drainage line shall be connected to the main drainage system.
- 32. For stormwater control, an On-site Stormwater Detention System is to be provided in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual.

OSD systems are to be provided for both the existing and the new residence.

Separate detention systems are to be provided for each residence, unless the OSD is cited in a common area and an appropriate legal instrument is set up to ensure the various parties equitably share the ongoing maintenance of the facility.

An overflow is to be incorporated that will direct any excess flow to the downstream drainage system and subsoil drainage is to be provided from the underside of the sediment control sump to the outlet line or other approved location.

The system is to be cleaned regularly and maintained to the satisfaction of Council

- NOTE 1: The on-site stormwater detention system and property drainage system is not to require excavation or fill underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
- NOTE 2: If the applicant wishes to vary the prescribed storage and outflow volumes contained in Council's Stormwater Management Manual, a detailed analysis must be provided following the guidelines set out in Council's requirements for on-site detention with full computations accompanying the submission including a flood routing analysis.
- NOTE 3: All roof, driveway and other hard-surface runoff water is to be intercepted and directed to the on-site stormwater detention system. If some areas of hard-surface are unable to be directed to the detention system an adjustment to the rate of discharge is to be made to attain the required site discharge.
- NOTE 4: If a landscaped surface type detention system is used the storage volume required is to be increased by 20%.

- NOTE 5: The standard Council On-site Stormwater Detention Calculation Sheet is to be completed and included on design drawings.
- 33. Stormwater runoff from all hard surfaces, or landscaped areas, which are not at natural ground level, shall be piped to the street drainage system. To ensure compliance with this condition, a Certificate from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

The stormwater line in the footway area, from the boundary pit to the kerb and gutter, shall be by way of a Steel Hot Dipped Galvanised Rectangular Hollow Section, of the appropriate size. This condition shall overide any other condition or reference to uPVC pipe connections.

Stormwater drainage lines in the footway, are only permitted in uPVC pipe, from the point where the obvert of the subject pipe, has more than 300mm of cover to the finished ground level. The sections of the pipe laid deeper than 300mm, can be laid in uPVC sewer grade pipe.

In the drainage line across the footway, where (1) a bend is placed, or (2) where the pipe changes from a uPVC pipe to a RHS), a cleaning eye shall be provided directly upstream of the subject location.

34. During construction of the crossing the contractor is to make provision for safety of pedestrians and passing vehicles. As a minimum traffic control measures must be provided in accordance with Figure 1 "Closing a footpath", (being on Page 20 & 21), of SAA HB81.1 - 1996 - Field Guide for Traffic Control at Works on Roads – Part 1.

The traffic management measures shall be implemented prior to the commencement of any works on-site including excavation.

- 35. Vehicular crossing to be a minimum 3.7 meters wide in accordance with Council's Specification.
- 36. If the proposed works are configured such that they will disrupt or disturb currently laid services for the existing dwelling, the applicant is to provide an alternative route for the effected services.
- 37. The provision of temporary sediment and erosion control facilities and measures are to be installed, prior to the commencement of any works on the site to minimise and/or eliminate unnecessary erosion and loss of sediment. These facilities are to be maintained in working order during construction works and up to the completion of the maintenance period. All sediment traps are to be cleared on a regular basis and after each major storm, and/or as directed by the Principal Certifying Authority, with all silt being removed from the site, or to an approved location within the site.
- 38. The relocation or adjustment of any utility service facilities are to be carried out by the Applicant in accordance with the requirements of the utility authority at no cost to Council.

- 39. The public footways and roadways adjacent to the site are to be maintained in a safe condition, at all times, during the course of the works.
- 40. The area marked on the plans for dwelling 1 as sub floor area is not to be used as part of the dwelling without further consent, and is only to be used a foundation space.
- 41. No fencing is approved under this application to the Bannockburn Road frontage or to the Sandford Road frontage. The existing timber paling fence to the Sandford Road frontage in front of proposed dwelling 2 is to be removed to ensure an appropriate streetscape presentation.

Any proposed fencing, other than fencing exempt under the provisions of the KPSO, will require separate approval.

## CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

- 42. Amended plans be provided for approval prior to the release of the construction certificate, detailing the following:
  - a. Conversion of the double garage to Dwelling 1 to a single garage of 3.0m maximum internal width to increase the area of private open space and the redesign of the access stairs from the deck to the rear yard as required to ensure the private open space area is not divided.
  - b. Either the provision of a skylight to the kitchen of Dwelling 1 or the removal of the wall between the kitchen and the family room, to ensure an appropriate level of internal solar access.
  - c. The provision of a solid, 1.5m high privacy screen to the eastern side of the rear deck of Dwelling 1, and
  - d. The provision of a 600mm high privacy screen to the top of the boundary fence with the property to the north, for the length of the family room of Dwelling 2.
- 43. Screen landscaping to reach and be maintained at a height of 2.5m is to be provided along the northern boundary for the length of the family room. Details of the planting are to be provided for approval with the construction certificate. The screen planting shall be completed prior to the issue of the final Certificate of Compliance or occupation of Dwelling 2 and shall be maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.
- 44. The Long Service Levy is to be paid to Council in accordance with the provisions of Section 34 of the Building and Construction Industry Payments Act 1986 prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. Note: Required if cost of works exceed \$25,000.00.
- 45. It is a condition of consent that the applicant, builder or developer or person who does the work on this residential building project arrange the Builders Indemnity Insurance and submit the Certificate of Insurance in accordance with the

requirements of Part 6 of the *Home Building Act 1989* to the Council or other Principal Certifying Authority for endorsement of the plans accompanying the Construction Certificate. It is the responsibility of the applicant, builder or developer to arrange the Builder's Indemnity Insurance for residential building work over the value of \$12,000 and to satisfy the Council or other Principal Certifying Authority by the presentation of the necessary Certificate of Insurance so as to comply with the applicable requirements of Part 6 of the *Home Building Act 1989*. The requirements for the Builder's Indemnity Insurance does not apply to commercial or industrial building work or for residential work less than \$12,000, nor to work undertaken by persons holding an Owner/Builder's Permit issued by the Department of Fair Trading (unless the owner/builder's property is sold within 7 years of the commencement of the work).

- The Infrastructure Restorations Fee calculated in accordance with the Council's 46. adopted schedule of Fees and Charges is to be paid to the Council prior to any earthworks or construction commencing. The applicant or builder/developer will be held responsible for and liable for the cost any damage caused to any Council property or for the removal of any waste bin, building materials, sediment, silt, or any other article as a consequence of doing or not doing anything to which this consent relates. "Council Property" includes footway, footpath paving, kerbing, guttering, crossings, street furniture, seats, litter bins, trees, shrubs, lawns mounds, bushland, and similar structures or features on road reserves or any adjacent public place. Council will undertake minor restoration work as a consequence of the work at this site in consideration of the "Infrastructure Restorations Fee" lodged with the Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate. This undertaking by the Council does not absolve the applicant or Builder/developer of responsibility for ensuring that work or activity at this site does not jeopardise the safety or public using adjacent public areas or of making good or maintaining "Council property" (as defined) during the course of this project.
- 47. A contribution is to be paid for the provision, extension or augmentation of community facilities, recreation facilities, open space and administration that will, or are likely to be, required as a consequence of development in the area.

TOTAL CONTRIBUTION FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT OF ONE ADDITIONAL DWELLING IS CURRENTLY \$9,789.78. The amount of the payment shall be in accordance with the Section 94 charges as at the date of payment. The charges may vary at the time of payment in accordance with Council's Section 94 Contributions Plan to reflect changes in land values, construction costs and the consumer price index.

This contribution shall be paid to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and the amount payable shall be in accordance with the Council's adopted Section 94 Contributions Plan for Residential Development, effective from 20 December 2000, calculated for additional person as follows:

1. Preparation of New Residents Kit

\$10.98

2. New Resident Survey

\$9.87

3.	New child care centre (including land acquisition	
	and construction of facility)	\$252.13
4.	Additions/alterations to Acron Rd child care centre	
	for additional 20 places	\$2.41
5.	New Library bookstock	\$17.95
6.	New Public Art	\$2.93
7.	Acquisition of Open Space - Turramurra/Warrawee	\$1,966.00
8.	Koola Park upgrade and reconfiguration	\$143.09
9.	North Turramurra Sportsfield development	\$986.80
10.	Section 94 2000-2003 Study and Interim Plan preparation cost	t \$49.34
11.	Section 94 Officer for period of Plan 2000-2003	\$118.42

To obtain the total contribution figure the following table of occupancy rates is to be used:

## OCCUPANCY RATES FOR DIFFERENT DWELLING SIZES

Large dwelling (110 - under 150sqm)

2.75 persons

- 48. Details of the proposed method of ensuring that the bathroom on the first floor and the ensuite located on the ground floor of Unit 2 comply with Part 3.8 "Health & Amenity" of the Housing Provisions of the Building Code of Australia and are to be submitted to and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority.
- 49. The Construction Certificate shall not be released until a Site Management Plan is submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority and approved by a suitably qualified professional.

The plan shall indicate the planned phases of the construction work, erosion and drainage management, tree protection measures, areas nominated for storing materials, site access and where vehicle parking is proposed, during construction.

- 50. A plan and specification of the proposed landscape works for the site shall be prepared in accordance with Council's Development Control Plan No 38, by a Landscape Designer to enhance the amenity of the built environment and protect the Ku-ring-gai landscape character. The plan must be submitted to Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate and be approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer prior to the commencement of works. The plan shall incorporate screen planting species capable of achieving heights as follows:
  - a. Northern boundary to private open space of Dwelling 1 = 2.0 metres
  - b. Northern boundary adjacent to deck of Dwelling 2 = 2.0-3.0 metres (2.5 metres for the length of the family room)
  - c. Eastern boundary of Dwelling 1 = 2.0 metres
  - d. Western boundary of Dwelling 2 = 2.0 metres
  - e. Eastern boundary of Dwelling 2 = 2.0 metres

- 51. To preserve the natural slope of the land the proposed retaining wall along the eastern side of Dwelling 2 driveway is to be deleted. Amended plans to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to issue of Construction Certificate.
- 52. To preserve the health and condition of the following tree/s, the proposed driveway to Dwelling 1 is to be setback the specified distance, measured from the centre of the trunk

Tree/Location

Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum) Southern boundary, nature strip 4.0 metres

53. To preserve the existing tree/s, existing ground levels are to be retained within the specified radius of the following trees. Amended plans to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority for approval prior to issue of Construction Certificate.

Tree/Location

Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum)

5.0 metres

Southern boundary, nature strip

Pittosporum undulatum (Sweet Pittosporum) 4.0 metres North east corner of site

*Tibouchina granulosa* (Lasiandra) North boundary, adjoining property 3.0 metres

- 54. The property shall support a minimum number of 3 trees that will attain 13.0 metres in height on the site, to preserve the tree canopy of Ku-ring-gai, in accordance with Council's policy of Tree Retention/Replenishment on Residential Allotments adopted 26 April 1988. The existing tree/s, and additional tree/s to be planted, shall be shown on the Landscape Plan/Site Plan. The plan shall be submitted to Council prior to release of Construction Certificate and approved by Council's Landscape Development Officer, prior to commence of work.
- 55. The 3 trees to be planted shall be maintained in a healthy and vigorous condition until they attain a height of 5.0 metres whereby they will be protected by Council's Tree Preservation Order. Any of the trees found faulty, damaged, dying or dead shall be replaced with the same species.
- 56. A *CASH BOND/BANK GUARANTEE* of \$1000.00 shall be lodged with Council as a Landscape Establishment Bond prior to the release of the Construction Certificate to ensure that the landscape works are installed and maintained in accordance with the approved landscape plan or other landscape conditions.

Fifty percent (50%) of the this bond will be refunded upon issue of the final Certificate of Compliance, where landscape works as approved have been satisfactorily installed. The balance of the bond will be refunded 3 years after issue of the building certificate, where landscape works has been satisfactorily established and maintained.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to notify Council in relation to the refunding of the bond at the end of the 3 year period. Where a change of ownership occurs during this period it is the responsibility of the applicant to make all arrangements regarding transference of the bond and to notify Council of such.

57. A CASH BOND/BANK GUARANTEE of \$2000.00 shall be lodged with Council prior to the release of the Construction Certificate to ensure that the following trees are maintained in the same condition as found prior to commencement site development work.

The bond will be returned following issue of the final Certificate of Compliance, provided the trees are undamaged.

In the event that any specified trees are found damaged, dying or dead as a result of any negligence by the applicant or its agent, or as a result of the construction works at any time during the construction period, Council will have the option to demand the whole or part therefore of the bond.

Tree/Location Radius From Trunk

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum) 5.0 metres Southern boundary, nature strip

- 58. The drainage concept design, by AFCE Drawing No. 333425, sheets 1 & 2 dated April 2003, is generally satisfactory, however the following issues are to be addressed prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate:
  - i) The Hydraulic Concept Design for the OSD is to be revised to reflect the redesign dated 15/7/03. This change can occur on the Construction Certificate details. In this regard finished floor level must be at least 200mm higher than the top water level of overflow weir in the adjacent OSD storage.
  - ii) The roof gutter, down pipe and drainage system of the dwelling is to be sized to catch and convey the 50 year ARI storm event to the OSD system. An engineer is to provide certification the Construction Certificate plans, that this has been achieved.
  - iii) Suitable kerbs or other approved "cut off" systems are to be provided in the OSD design to ensure a maximum possible amount of overland flow is directed to the OSD system. These kerbs etc, are to be sized for all storms up to the 50 year ARI storm event. An engineer is to provide certification the Construction Certificate plans, that this has been achieved.
  - iv) A boundary pit is to be provided at the point where line P1-P2 crosses the front boundary.

- v) The stormwater outlet to the street from the Boundary pit to be by way of hot dipped galvanised steel section, of appropriate dimensions, except for that part of the line where the obvert of the pipe is deeper than 300mm.
- vi) Earth mounding will not be acceptable as the storage perimeter wall. Any perimeter walls must be in masonry on a reinforced concrete footing.
- vii) Where OSD storage is by way of underground storage,
  - a. Inflow pipes to the storage chamber are to be located below inspection grates.
  - b. If soil and turf are to cover the tank, then a minimum depth of soil to be 350mm.
- viii) Drainage design details are to be compatible with the landscaping plans.
- ix) Councils landscape officer is to consider the final location of all drainage infrastructure including (a) drainage lines, (b) OSD tanks and (c)OSD basin walls. Only after the Council Landscape Officer's approval, can the Construction Certificate be issued.
- x) The access grate above the control chamber is to be a grate of 600mm x 900mm or greater. Apart from the grate above the control chamber, other grates to have the following minimum sizes, depending on the pit depth as follows:-

Depth of Chamber below grate Min grate and Pit size

Less than 300mm	300 square
Less than 450mm	450 square
Equal to or Less than 600mm	600 square
Greater than 600mm	600 x 900

- 59. For stormwater retention and quality control, provision of a five (5) metre long first-flush absorption trench *for each dwelling*, designed to capture and retain the first-flush stormwater runoff from the subject property after which runoff bypasses the trench and reverts to the main drainage system. Design drawings shall be submitted and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority with the Construction Certificate.
  - NOTE 1: The first-flush system may be achieved by the use of a separate low-level outlet from a pit located on the main drainage system.
  - NOTE 2: Where practicable, runoff from driveway and landscaped areas is to be directed to the retention system in preference to roof runoff.
  - NOTE 3: The trench shall be 700mm wide x 700mm deep and fitted with half round PVC (230mm radius) dome sections backfilled with crushed or round river gravel to within 150mm of surface level, surrounded with suitable geofabric and finished with topsoil.
  - NOTE 4: The trench is to be at least 5 metres from private property boundaries and 3 metres from the footings of any structure.

- NOTE 5: A suitably designed litter and coarse sediment 450mm square grated arrestor pit is to be provided immediately upstream of the trench.
- NOTE 6: The trench is not to require excavation underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
- NOTE 7: Upon completion, certification from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority with respect to this condition being satisfied.
- NOTE 8: This requirement does not apply where the Applicant considers installation to be impractical.

### OR

For stormwater retention, provision of a 2000 litre rainwater tank *for each dwelling*, designed to capture and retain runoff from at least one roof downpipe after which runoff bypasses the tank and reverts to the main drainage system. Design drawings shall be submitted and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) **prior** to issue of the Construction Certificate.

- NOTE 1: The tank is to be located at or above existing natural ground level.
- NOTE 2: If abutting a wall of the dwelling, the tank must be below the eaves line.
- NOTE 3: The tank must not be located on the front facade of a dwelling.
- NOTE 4: If the tank is to be attached to a structure then a structural engineer is to certify the adequacy of the design of the structure to carry the tank
- NOTE 5: Maximum height of the tank is 1.8 metres above natural ground level where installed along the side boundary setback of a dwelling.
- NOTE 6: The tank is to be a commercially manufactured tank designed for the use of water supply and to be installed in accordance with manufacturers specifications.
- NOTE 7: The tank is to be located above an available landscaped area so that the tank may be readily used for watering purposes.
- NOTE 8: The tank is to be fitted with a standard garden tap or similar which is to be clearly marked as not to be used for drinking purposes.

- NOTE 9: The tank is to be fitted with measures to prevent mosquito breeding.
- NOTE 10: Upon completion, certification from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority with respect to this condition being satisfied
- NOTE 11: This requirement does not apply where the Applicant considers installation to be impractical.
- 60. To prevent surface stormwater from entering the building, the finished habitable ground floor level(s) of the building shall be a minimum of 150mm above adjacent finished ground level(s). The entire outside perimeter of the building must have overland flow escape routes which will protect all finished floor levels from flooding during times of complete subsurface drainage blockage. This requirement is to be demonstrated on submitted Construction Certificate drawings.
- 61. The property drainage system shall be designed and based upon a 235mm/hour rainfall intensity for a duration of five (5) minutes (1:50 year storm recurrence) for impervious surfaces and in accordance with Council's Stormwater Management Manual. Design drawings and calculations are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced hydraulic engineer and submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) **prior** to issue of the Construction Certificate.
  - NOTE 1: The property drainage system is not to require excavation or fill underneath the canopy areas of any trees to be retained unless as approved by a qualified arborist's certification that such excavation will not affect the longevity of the subject tree(s).
  - NOTE 2: If the proposed drainage system involves piping underneath or within the building then the designer is to certify that the design is in accordance with AS3500.3.2:1998 and the BCA.
  - NOTE 3: All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, are to be safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.
- 62. Full design drawings of the proposed method of achieving the requirements for on-site stormwater detention and supporting calculations are to be prepared by a suitably qualified and experienced hydraulic engineer and submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) **prior** to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 63. For any new crossing or driveway works adjacent to the boundary the following will apply.

DRIVEWAYS AND FOOTPATHS: Approval of this Development Application is for works wholly within the property and does not imply approval of footpath or driveway levels, materials or location regardless of whether this information is shown on the Application.

Footpath and driveway levels at the property boundary/road alignment are to be obtained from Council's Technical Services Department prior to release of the Construction Certificate. All footpaths and driveways are to be constructed strictly in accordance with Council's specifications, "Construction of Gutter Crossings and Footpath Crossings" which is issued with alignment levels after payment of the appropriate fee.

The grading of such footpaths or driveways outside the property is to comply with Council's standard requirements. The suitability of the grade of such paths or driveways inside the property is the sole responsibility of the applicant, and this may be affected by the alignment levels fixed by Council.

Note: The construction of footpaths and driveways outside the property, in materials other than those approved by Council, is not permitted and Council may require immediate removal of unauthorised installations.

- 64. Submission for approval with the Construction Certificate of a Soil and Erosion Control Plan prepared in accordance with the NSW Department of Housing document "Managing Urban Stormwater Soils and Construction" (1998) by a suitably qualified and experienced engineer or surveyor. Such controls should include but not be limited to appropriately sized sediment basins, diversion systems, appropriate controls for each stage of works identified and barrier fencing which maximises and protects areas which are not to be disturbed. The plan must also specify inspection and maintenance regimes and responsibilities and rehabilitation measures.
- 65. The floor plans shall be amended to depict the separation of the proposal in the roof form as indicated in the site plan and elevations.

### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING

- 66. The submission of the approved plans to Sydney Water, before any work is commenced to ensure that the proposed structure meets that Authority's By-Laws. Failure to submit these plans before commencing work will render the owner liable to a penalty and may result in the demolition of work.
- 67. Prior to commencing any construction or subdivision work, the following provisions of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act, 1979 (the 'Act') are to be complied with:
  - a. A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section 81A(2)(a) of the Act.
  - b. A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act.

- c. Council is to be notified in writing, at least two (2) days prior to the intention of commencing buildings works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act.
- d. Should the development be certified by a Principal Certifying Authority other than Council, a fee for each Part 4A Certificate is to be paid to Council on lodgement of those Certificates with Council.
- 68. Prior to the commencement of any work, the Principal Certifying Authority shall be notified in writing of the name and contractor licence number of the owner/builder who intends to carry out the approved works.
- 69. External finishes and colours are to be sympathetic to the surrounding environment. Samples of materials and finishes are to be submitted to and approved by Council prior to the commencement of work.
- 70. To preserve and enhance the natural environment, a geofabric filter fence shall be installed along contour immediately downslope of construction and disturbed areas prior to any earthworks or construction commencing. Both ends shall be turned uphill by 1.0 metre. Approved geofabric, such as CSR Humes "Propex" Terram 1000, Polyfelt TS500, Bidim U24 or Terratrack 2415 or equivalent is to be stretched between posts placed at 2.0 to 3.0 metre centres. The base of the fabric must be buried at least 200mm in the ground on the upslope side. Geofabric material shall be replaced at intervals not exceeding 18 months, or as directed by the Principal Certifying Authority.

The geofabric filter fence shall be maintained in an operational condition until the development activities have been completed and the site fully stabilised. Sediment shall be removed from the structure when 40% capacity has been reached.

71. To preserve the following tree/s, no work shall commence until the area beneath the canopy of the following tree/s is fenced off at the specified radius from the trunk to prevent any activities, storage or the disposal of materials within the fenced area. The fence/s shall be maintained intact until the completion of all demolition/building work on site.

Tree/Location Radius in Metres

Eucalyptus saligna (Sydney Blue Gum) 5.0 metres Southern boundary, nature strip

Pittosporum undulatum (Sweet Pittosporum) 4.0 metres North east corner of site

Tibouchina granulosa (Lasiandra) 3.0 metres
North boundary, adjoining property

72. The tree protection fence shall be constructed of galvanised pipe at 2.4 metre spacings and connected by securely attached chain mesh fencing to a minimum height of 1.8 metres prior to work commencing.

73. Upon completion of the installation of the required tree protection measures you are required to contact Council on telephone 9424 0888 or facsimile 9418 1117 to arrange an inspection of the site, in this regard a minimum of 24 hours notice is required. Following the carrying out of a satisfactory inspection and subject to the payment of all relevant monies and compliance with any other conditions of approval, work may commence.

### CONDITIONS TO BE COMPLIED WITH PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 74. The approved building shall not be occupied unless the development has been completed in accordance with all conditions of consent and the approved plans and a Occupation Certificate has been issued.
- 75. Prior to the release of any occupation certificate, a compliance certificate must be obtained from an accredited certifier, certifying that the building works for the building to be occupied comply with the plans and specifications approved by this development consent; and any construction certificate associated with this consent for the buildings to be occupied. If the PCA is not the Council, then this compliance certificate must be submitted to the Council at the same time as the occupation certificate is submitted to the Council in accordance with Clause 151(2) of the E P & A Act regulations.
- 76. Construction of the property stormwater drainage works is to be supervised and upon completion certified by a suitably qualified and experienced hydraulic engineer or surveyor, prior to Occupation, that:
  - a. The works were carried out and completed in accordance with the approved plans.
  - b. All enclosed floor areas, including habitable and garage floor levels, are safeguarded from outside stormwater runoff ingress by suitable differences in finished levels, gradings and provision of stormwater collection devices.

A Works-as-Executed drawing of the property stormwater drainage system is also to be furnished by the Certifier prior to Occupation.

- 77. Construction of the On-site Stormwater Detention System is to be supervised and upon completion a Certificate and Works-as-Executed drawing issued by a suitably qualified and experienced engineer or surveyor is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to occupation or issue of an Occupation Certificate.
  - NOTE 1: The Certificate is to be with respect to compliance with:
  - a. The soundness of the structure.
  - b. The adequacy of the outlet control mechanism to achieve the discharge as specified.
  - c. The capacity of the detention storage as specified.
  - d. The size of the orifice or pipe control fitted.
  - e. The maximum depth of storage over the outlet control.
  - f. The adequate provision of a debris screen.

- g. The inclusion of weepholes in the base of the outlet control pit.
- h. The provision of an emergency overflow path.
- NOTE 2: The certifying engineer and surveyor is to also complete and submit Council's standard On-site Stormwater Detention Certification sheet.
- NOTE 3: The Works-as-Executed drawing(s) are to include all relevant levels including:
- a. Invert levels
- b. surface or pavement levels
- c. floor levels including adjacent property floor levels
- d. maximum water surface level to be achieved in the storage zone
- e. dimensions of basin(s), tank(s), pit(s), etc.
- f. location(s) of basin(s), tank(s) and distances from buildings, boundaries, and easements, etc.
- g. storage volume(s) provided and supporting calculations
- h. size of orifice(s)
- i. Extent of the New concrete footpath, (1.2m wide), along the full frontage of Sandford Road.
- 78. In order to maintain Council's database of as-constructed on-site stormwater detention systems, if the Principal Certifying Authority is not Council then a copy of the approved stormwater detention design, the works-as-executed drawings and the Engineer's certification of the as-constructed system is to be provided to Council, attention Development Engineer, prior to occupation, the issue of the Occupation Certificate or the issue of a subdivision certificate.
- 79. Prior to occupation, the issue of an Occupation Certificate or the issue of a Subdivision Certificate, all disused driveway crossings, pipe crossing and/or kerb laybacks are to be reinstated as footway and kerb and/or gutter to the satisfaction of Council's Development Engineer.

Any infrastructure within the road reserve along the frontage of the subject site or within close proximity which has been damaged as a result of construction works on the subject site is to be repaired to the satisfaction of Council's Development Engineer.

Unless the Council Crossing inspector directs otherwise, the redundant sections of layback shall be reinstated in the following manner.

- A The pavement is to be saw cut parallel to the lip of kerb.
- B The existing concrete gutter is to be removed.
- C The existing layback is to be removed.
- D New "cast in situ" integral K&G is to be poured and connected to the adjoining sections of upright kerb with suitable bitumen jointing.
- 80. The creation of a Positive Covenant and Restriction on the Use of Land under Section 88B of the Conveyancing Act 1919, burdening the property with the requirement to maintain the on-site stormwater detention facilities on the

property prior to occupation or the issue of an occupation or subdivision certificate. The terms of the instruments are to be generally in accordance with the Council's "draft terms of Section 88B instrument for protection of on-site detention facilities" and to the satisfaction of Council. For existing Titles, the Positive Covenant and the Restriction on the use of Land is to be created through an application to the Land Titles Office in the form of a request using forms 13PC and 13RPA.

Where the provided OSD is not a separate system for each Dwelling, the 88B instrument is to be created so that it clearly defines; both lots, each have 50% responsibility for the OSD system. The responsibility includes (a) maintenance, (b) upkeep and (c) replacement of the OSD system if it deteriorates to be unserviceable after a time.

- 81. For any of the legal instruments created as a requirement of this determination, Ku-ring-gai Council is to be named as the only authority empowered to release, vary or modify such instruments.
- 82. The dual occupancy development approved under this determination is to be completed to "lock-up" stage (being that stage where the building has the following components: external walls, cladding roofing, and all doors and windows with locks, installed, erected or constructed in their approved completed form) prior to a Subdivision Certificate being released by Council under any separate subdivision application.
- 83. A Section 73 Compliance Certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained. Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator. Please refer to "Your Business" section of Sydney Water's web site at <a href="www.sydneywater.com.au">www.sydneywater.com.au</a> then the "e-developer" icon or telephone 13 20 92.

Following application a "Notice of Requirements" will detail water and sewer extensions to be built and charges to be paid. Please make early contact with the Coordinator, since building of water/sewer extensions can be time consuming and may impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.

The Section 73 Certificate must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to occupation of the development/ release of the plan of subdivision.

84. The screen planting shall be completed prior to the release of an Occupation Certificate and be maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.

## **BUILDING CONDITIONS**

Note: If Council is the Principle Certifying Authority, the following building conditions shall form part of this consent.

85. The following are required details and must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority *prior to issue of the Construction Certificate*. Any matter

listed below must have a Certificate attached from a suitably qualified person to the effect that the design or matter complies with the relevant design Standard or Code which the Certificate must identify.

- a. Details prepared by a practicing structural engineer for all or any reinforced concrete,
- b. Upper floor joist details, engineered or complying with AS 1684-1992 National Timber Framing Code.
- c. Retaining walls and associated drainage.
- 86. The building works are to be inspected during construction by the Council, an accredited certifier or other suitably qualified person/s (as applicable) and a Compliance Certificate shall be issued prior to proceeding to the subsequent stages of construction, encompassing not less than the following stages:
  - a. All sediment and erosion control and tree protection measures and installations in place on the site prior to the commencement of any earthworks, excavations or other work.
  - b. Any pier holes and/or foundation material.
  - c. Any steel reinforcement prior to placement of concrete. This includes all reinforcement of floors, slabs, trenches, columns, beams and stairs (if components of this structure).
  - d. Any structural components (i.e. timber framework, structural steelwork or the like) before fixing any lining or covering.
  - e. Any stormwater drainage works prior to covering.
  - f. The completed landscape works in accordance with the approved plans.
  - g. The completed structure prior to occupation.

The required inspection fees (which also covers the issue of the Compliance Certificate) are to be paid to the Council before the issue of a Construction Certificate for this development.

If inspections are to be carried out by Council, 24 hours notice is required by Council's Department of Environmental and Regulatory Services, by telephoning Customer Service on 9424 0888 during business hours (8.30am to 4.30pm) or by facsimile on 9418 1117.

Note: Inspections of work which is found to be defective or not ready will attract a reinspection fee. Please cancel bookings which will not be ready for inspection.

- 87. Any mechanical ventilation installed in a dwelling shall comply with the requirements of Part 3.8.5.0 of the Building Code of Australia Housing Provisions. Documentary evidence of compliance is to be obtained from a suitably qualified person and submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate.
- 88. To ensure compliance with this determination the building shall be set out by a Registered Surveyor and the Survey Report shall be lodged with the Principal

Certifying Authority prior to the external wall construction proceeding above floor level.

- 89. To ensure compliance with this determination a Registered Surveyor's Report confirming reduced levels as shown on the approved plans with particular regard to the future finished level of the ground and first floors shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority on completion of that floor.
- 90. All structural timber members subject to weather exposure shall have a durability class rating of 2 or better in accordance with Australian Standard 1684.2-1999 (National Timber Framing Code), or be preservative treated in accordance with Australian Standard 1604-1980 (Preservative Treatment for Sawn Timbers, Veneers and Plywood).
- 91. For the purpose of safety and convenience a balustrade of 1.0 metre minimum height shall be provided to any landing, verandah, balcony or stairway of a height exceeding 1.0 metre above finished ground level. The design may consist of vertical or horizontal bars but shall not have any opening exceeding 125mm. For floors more than 4.0 metres above the ground, any horizontal elements within the balustrade or other barrier between 150mm and 760mm above the floor must not facilitate climbing.
- 92. For the purpose of safe ingress and egress the stairs are to be constructed within the following dimensions:

Risers: Maximum 190mm Minimum 115mm Going (Treads): Maximum 355mm Minimum 240mm

Note: Dimensions must also comply with limitations of two (2) Risers and one (1) going equalling a maximum 700mm or minimum 550mm. The Risers and Goings shall be uniform throughout the length of the stairway.

- 93. For fire safety an automatic fire detection and alarm system shall be installed throughout the dwelling in accordance with the following requirements:
  - a. A smoke alarm system complying with Part 3.7.2 of the Building Code of Australia Housing Provisions; or
  - b. Smoke alarms which:
    - i. comply with Australian Standard 3786 or listed in the Scientific Services Laboratory Register of Accredited Products (all accredited products should have scribed on them the appropriate accreditation notation); and
    - ii. are connected to the mains and have a standby power supply; and
    - iii. are installed in suitable locations on or near the ceiling and as prescribed under Part 3.7.2 of the Building Code of Australia Housing Provisions.

To ensure compliance with this condition, a Compliance Certificate or documentary evidence from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority.

94. Termite protection which will provide whole of building protection in accordance with Australian Standard 3660 - "Protection of Buildings from Subterranean Termites" is to be provided.

Council has a non chemical policy for termite control but will consider proposals involving physical barriers in combination with approved chemical systems. Handspraying is prohibited.

Where a monolithic slab is used as part of a termite barrier system, the slab shall be constructed in accordance with Australian Standard 2870.1 or as designed by a structural engineer but in either case shall be vibrated to achieve maximum compaction.

To ensure compliance with this condition, a Compliance Certificate or documentary evidence from a suitably qualified person is to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the issue of an Occupation Certificate.

- 95. The following are required details and must be submitted to the Council on completion of the works. Any matter listed below must have a Certificate attached from a suitably qualified person to the effect that the design or matter complies with the relevant design Standard or Code which the Certificate must identify.
  - a. Wet area waterproofing details complying with the Building Code of Australia.
  - b. Glazing details complying with AS 1288-1989 Glass in Buildings and Installation Code.
  - c. A registered surveyors report confirming the development does not exceed 46% built upon area.

For the Resolution: The Mayor, Councillor I Cross, Councillors Hall,

Little and Malicki

Against the Resolution: Councillors Bennett and Kitson

# Evaluation And Acceptance Of Tender For New Waste And Recycling Collection Contract

File: S03185

To present to Council the outcome of the tender for the new waste and recycling collection contract and the evaluation of the tenders received.

## Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Hall/Bennett)

That this matter be deferred and submitted to Council's Strategic Review Working Party and brought back to Council on 23 March 2004.

### **CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY**

## 134 Asset Works Definitions

File: S02135

To provide a description of works associated with the various classes of assets owned and operated by Council. It is intended that this will assist Council in determining the various categories of works associated with the asset classes and determining the level of funding required in future years.

#### Resolved:

(Moved: Councillors Bennett/Kitson)

That the definitions for the various asset classes as detailed in the report be adopted by Council for the purpose of assigning program funding and allocation of internally restricted reserves other than for the building reserve where expenditure shall be restricted to the replacement of existing buildings or major structural alterations, for example new annexures or wings, or construction of new buildings.

**CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY** 

#### MOTIONS OF WHICH DUE NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

## 135 Sydney Turpentine Ironbark Forest

File: 06/0043-003

Notice of Motion from Councillor A Little dated 3 March 2004.

I move:

That as a matter of urgency, Council nominate Sydney Turpentine Ironbark Forest as a critically endangered ecological community under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999.

*The above Notice of Motion was withdrawn.* 

## 136 Railway Station Lifts

File: S02261

## Notice of Motion from Councillor A Little dated 3 March 2004.

With regard to part C of minute number 88, Railway Station Lifts – Implementation

I move:

That the General Manager and the Mayor seek a meeting with the Minister for Transport and Barry O'Farrell MP as soon as possible, to discuss Ku-ring-gai Council and State Rail working together in developing guidelines that allow for improved access to all railway stations in Ku-ring-gai and recognise the heritage significance of the whole North Shore Railway Line.

The above Notice of Motion was withdrawn.

#### QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE

## 137 **14 Arthur Street, Killara - Complaints by Residents regarding Notification Process** File: DA0937/03

Question Without Notice from Councillor J Kitson

I have received several complaints from residents regarding the notification process for the Section 82A application for DA0937/03, 14 Arthur Street, Killara.

Why did residents believe they had not received due notification?

Does the notification letter for a Section 82A application need rewording for clarification?

### Answer by the Mayor

General Manager will investigate and report back.

## 138 Visit to Ku-ring-gai by Assistant Planning Minister Beamer

File: S02036

Question Without Notice from Councillor T Hall

What issues were raised in the Assistant Planning Minister's visit to Ku-ring-gai last week relative to Council's failed Draft LEP 194?

### Answer by the Mayor

The General Manager will respond to that.

# INSPECTIONS COMMITTEE – SETTING OF TIME, DATE AND RENDEZVOUS

The next Inspections Committee will take place on Saturday, 13 March 2004.

Council resolved itself into Closed Meeting with the Press and Public Excluded to deal with the following item:

	·	
139	48 St Johns Avenue, Gordon – Drainage (Section $10A(2)(g)$ - Advice concerning litigation)	
	File: P59001	
	Report by Directors Technical Services and Finance & Business dated 2 March 2	004.
	Resolved:	
	(Moved: Councillors Little/Hall)	
	That the matter be deferred to the next Strategic Review Working Party if possible the next Council meeting on 23 March 2004.	e or
	CARRIED UNANIMOU	J <b>SLY</b>
	General Manager adverted to the consideration of the matter referred to in Minute N and to the resolution contained in such Minute.	0
	The Meeting closed at 10.31pm	
The N	Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 9 March 2004, (Pages 1 – 78), confirmed as a full and accurate record of proceedings on 23 March 2004.	were
	General Manager Mayor / Chairperson	